

# North Carolina Charter School Application New Hope Charter School

Public charter schools opening the fall of 2015

Due by 5:00 pm, December 6, 2013

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction NCDPI/Office of Charter Schools 301 N. Wilmington Street Raleigh NC 27601-2825 919-807-3491

> Mailing Address: 6303 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-6303

OCS August 2012

# CHARTER SCHOOL

**2013 Application Process** 

To open a charter school in the 2015-2016 school year

# **APPLICATION DUE DATE/TIME**

#### September 6, 2013

A letter of intent to apply for the 2015-2016 school year <u>must</u> be received electronically to Deanna Townsend-Smith in the Office of Charter Schools <u>no later than 12:00 noon at deanna.townsend-smith@dpi.nc.gov</u>. If the Letter of Intent is not submitted, an application from this group will not be accepted. You can find the Letter of Intent requirements on the NC Office of Charter School web site.

**December 6, 2013** 

A complete online application package, in the Office of Charter Schools by 5:00 pm.

**December 13, 2013** 

A copy of the application due to the Local Education Agency in which the proposed charter school will reside in. Applicant must provide an attached PDF version as evidence to the Office of Charter Schools (i.e. signed letter).

## **APPLICATION SPECIFICATIONS**

Applicants can submit applications prior to the deadline December 6, 2013 at 5:00 pm. **All applicants must be submitted using the online portal** and applicants are to use the following specifications:

- 1. All required Appendices should be clearly titled, include page numbers (i.e. Appendix A and page numbers as- A1, A2, B1...), and submitted as a FULL PDF document.
- 2. Review all elements of your application for completeness before submitting. **An incomplete application** will result in the elimination of the application.
- 3. Late submissions will not be accepted. No exceptions.
- 4. Provide confirmation electronically to the Office of Charter Schools to <u>deanna.townsend-smith@dpi.nc.gov</u> that within seven (7) days the applicant has provided one full copy of the application to the LEA in which the proposed charter school will be located.

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

I. APPLICATION CONTACT INFORMATION	5
Grade Levels Served and Total Student Enrollment:	
<u>II</u>	
MISSION and PURPOSES	7
Mission:	 7
Educational need and Targeted Student Population of the Proposed Charter School:	7
Purposes of the Proposed Charter School:	
Goals for the Proposed Charter School:	
<u></u>	
EDUCATION PLAN_	
Instructional Program:	13
C	10
K-5 Curriculum and Instructional Design:	 14
C	
6-8 Curriculum and Instructional Design:	17
<u>C</u>	
Special Programs and "At-Risk" Students	
Exceptional Children_	21
Student Performance Standards	24
Student Conduct:	25
<u>IV.</u>	
GOVERNANCE, OPERATIONS and CAPACITY	27
Governance:	
Governance and Organizational Structure of Private Non-Profit Organization:	27
Proposed Management Organization (Educational Management Organization or Charter	
Organization)	
Private School Conversions: complete	
	02
CProjected Staff:	
Staffing Plans, Hiring, and Management	
Staff Evaluation and Professional Development	
Enrollment and Marketing:	
Marketing Plan	
Parent and Community Involvement	
Admissions Policy	
PROJECTED ENROLLMENT 2015-16 through 2019-2020	42
Transportation Plan:	43
School Lunch Plan:	43
Civil Liability and Insurance	43
Health and Safety Requirements:	44
Facility:	
Facility Contingency Plan:	44
<u>V.</u>	
FINANCIAL PLAN	
Budget: Revenue Projections from each LEA 2015-16	45
Total Budget: Revenue Projections 2015-16 through 2019-2020	
Personnel Budget: Expenditure Projections 2015-16 through 2019-2020	
Operations Budget: Expenditure Projections 2015-16 through 2019-2020	
Overall Budget:	50
Budget Narrative:	
	50
Financial Audits:	50
	50 53

LEA Impact Statement:	5
Applicant Signature:	5

#### I. APPLICATION CONTACT INFORMATION

Name of proposed charter school: New Hope Charter School

Has the organization applied for 501(c)(3) non-profit status: Yes No X

Name of non-profit organization under which charter will be organized or operated: New Hope Charter School Inc.

Provide the name of the person who will serve as the primary contact for this Application. The primary contact should serve as the contact for follow-up, interviews, and notices regarding this Application.

Name of contact person: Charleen Cody

Title/Relationship to nonprofit: Board Member

Mailing address: 446 Davis Love Drive

Chapel Hill NC 27517

Primary telephone: 919-225-6297 Alternative telephone: 919-466-8018

E-Mail address: charleencody@yahoo.com

Name of county and local education agency (LEA) in which charter school will reside:

County: CHATHAM

LEA: 190-Chatham County Schools

Is this application a Conversion from a traditional public school or private school?

No: Χ

Yes:

Is this application being submitted as a replication of a current charter school model?

No: Yes:

What is the name of the nonprofit organization that governs this charter school? New Hope Charter School Inc.

Is this application for Virtual charter school: Yes: No: X

# **Grade Levels Served and Total Student Enrollment:**

Projected School Opening: Year 2015 Month August

Will this school operate on a year round schedule?

No: Χ

Yes:

Proposed Grade Levels Served and Total Student Enrollment ( 10

Years)

Academic	Grade Levels	Total Projected
School Year		Student Enrollment
First Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06	729
Second Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07	829
Third Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Fourth Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Fifth Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Sixth Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Seventh Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Eight Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Ninth Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929
Tenth Year	K,01,02,03,04,05,06,07,08	929

The State Board of Education provides funds to charter schools, approves the original members of the boards of directors of the charter schools, has the authority to grant, supervise, and revoke charters, and demands full accountability from charter schools for school finances and student performance.

I certify that I have the authority to submit this application and that the initial board members and I were regularly involved in the development of this application. All information contained herein is complete and accurate. I realize that any misrepresentation will result in disqualification from the application process or revocation after award. I understand that incomplete applications will not be considered. The person named as the contact person for the application is so authorized to serve as the primary contact for this application on behalf of the non-profit organization.

<u>newhopecharter</u>	Board Member
Signature	Title
newhopecharter	12/06/2013
Printed Name	 Date

#### II. MISSION and PURPOSES

(No more than three total pages in this section)

#### Mission:

State the Mission of the proposed charter school in **one hundred words or less**. The mission statement defines the organization's purpose and primary objectives, describing why it exists. The mission statement provides the foundation for the entire proposal.

The mission statement of the proposed charter school is as follows:

The mission of New Hope Charter School is to develop within its students the intellectual capacity and personal habits and character qualities necessary to live independent, healthy and productive lives as paragons of a free and just society.

# **Educational need and Targeted Student Population of the Proposed Charter School:**

1. Provide a description of Targeted Population in terms of demographics. In your description, include how this population will reflect the racial and ethnic composition of the school system in which it is located. Describe the rationale for selecting the location and student body.

Chatham County has a population of approximately 66,503. Durham County has a population of approximately 284,618. Wake County has a population of approximately 965,060. The racial makeup of all three counties is predominately White, then Black and finally Hispanic. The achievement gap among races and ethnicities is a problem facing the nation. Our school will reside in Chatham County near the borders of Wake and Durham Counties allowing a more broad spectrum of students from all races and ethnicities to be reached with a quality education. In addition, childhood obesity is a concern in these areas which New Hope Charter's educational model will help address.

The traditional public school system was designed for a 19th Century agricultural society. It was successful for that day and age as the majority of children lived in rural areas and that level of education was adequate to prepare them for work and their role as citizens. However, with the advent of the Industrial Revolution and the new Information Revolution, the world is not as large as it once was. Our society has drastically changed and now our expectations for schools must change also. In times past, there was very little school choice available to children except for those from families with the finances to pay private school tuition.

Children went to a school as determined by their zip code or the street where they lived. Today, in what is a true grass roots effort, parents are pushing for more options for their children. Parents and educators recognize that a "one-size fits-all" school does not fit the needs of all students. Given the economic realities of the global economy, parents want their children to have more opportunities than they themselves had and they know a quality education is essential for that to occur. Furthermore, today we are living in a global economy. The current generation of students will

not just compete on a local, state or even national level; they must compete internationally. Technology has changed the world dramatically; many jobs that were once tied to a city, state or region are now able to be located in another city or state and even another country. It is imperative the United States meet and exceed the educational results achieved by other countries so that American students of all races and ethnicities can be ready for the challenges of a global economy.

According to the results of the 2012 Program for International Student Assessment (PISA), an international assessment that measures the performance of fifteen-year-olds in reading, mathematics, and science every three years, U.S. students rank seventeenth in reading, twenty-sixth in math, and twenty-first in science among students in industrial countries. Key findings indicate that there have been no significant changes in these performances over time. In particular students in the United States are not able to combine mathematical tasks with higher cognitive demands. PISA indicates thatour students dont have the ability to take real world situations, translate them into mathematical terms and interpret mathematical aspects in real world problems. Finally, the United States has a below average share of top performers in all categories reading, math and science. For the sake of the future of this generation of students, we cannot afford to fall behind the rest of the world.

- 2. What will be the total projected enrollment at the charter school and what percentage of the Average Daily Membership (ADM) does that reflect when compared to the Local Education Agency (LEA) of the same offered grade levels? (i.e. If the proposed school will be grades 9-12, only compare the total enrollment to the total enrollment of the LEA is grades 9-12).
- The total enrollment for New Hope Charter School is projected to be approximately 929. Chatham's (8,310), Durham's (33,114) and Wake's (153,803) Average Daily Membership allotments amount to 195,227. 929 students would impact the three LEAs at only 0.48%.
  - 3. Explain how the charter school's education plan will compare to or differ from that of the local LEA(s).

The education plan described herein includes curriculum from the Core Knowledge Sequence which is used by charter and traditional public schools in North Carolina and in other states. However, New Hope Charter School is not modeled specifically after any one of those. This application is similar to those proposed by other Athlos affiliated applicant Boards. While the educational plan utilizes the Core Knowledge Sequence, we do not intend to be an official Core Knowledge school. Many other schools such as traditional public schools also utilize the Core Knowledge Sequence, but are not Core Knowledge schools.

The Core Knowledge Sequence is defined as "a detailed outline of specific content and skills to be taught in language arts, history, geography, mathematics, science, and the fine arts. As the core of a school's curriculum, it provides a coherent, content specific foundation of learning, while allowing flexibility to meet local needs." Core Knowledge is content specific, coherent, cumulative and content rich. The specificity of the Core Knowledge Sequence distinguishes it from other curricula. By clearly specifying important knowledge in language arts, history, geography, math, science, and the fine arts, the Core Knowledge Sequence presents a practical

answer to the question, "What do our children need to know?" While most provide general guidelines concerning skills, they typically offer little help in deciding specific content. The specific content in the Core Knowledge Sequence also provides a solid foundation for skills instruction. Additionally, because the Sequence builds knowledge systematically year by year, it helps prevent repetitions and gaps in instruction that can result from vague curricular guidelines.

New Hope Charter's educational program will include The Writing Road to Reading program by Spalding Education and the Saxon Mathematics program. Both are strong core subject programs that fully support and powerfully implement Core Knowledge. Participation will also be encouraged in academic competitions and extracurricular activities such as Student Council and math & science clubs. Core Knowledge meets and exceeds the North Carolina Essential Standards and the Common Core Standards. The Writing Road to Reading program and Saxon Math are also both aligned to the Common Core Standards.

We believe that there are universally important civic and ethical virtues that are the foundations of a free and democratic society, such as respect, responsibility, trustworthiness, fairness, caring, courage, grit and diligence. We will use the Core Virtues program and resources from the Center for Civic Education, and other resources as appropriate. The Core Virtues program is a non-sectarian, literature-based program aligned to Core Knowledge which provides interesting and meaningful opportunities to cultivate character through the promotion of basic moral, civic, and intellectual virtues. We will reinforce the traits through expectations in the academic curriculum, the character-fitness program and other student leadership opportunities. By relating these character strengths to life lessons when students fall short of academic, fitness, athletic, leadership, and behavior goals and standards, staff will use consistent vocabulary to encourage students to apply these traits to learn from adversity and to recommit to school expectations that is appropriate at each age level.

New Hope Charter has partnered with Athlos Academy to provide an athletic curriculum tailored to students spanning each grade level for 30-60 minutes each day, four times per week depending on grade level. This curriculum will emphasize balance, coordination, technique, relative strength and the introduction of essential muscular movement patterns, all of which are vital to establishing an athletic foundation, injury prevention and a long-term enjoyment of physical activity and exercise. Please see Appendix T for more information.

4. In the appendices (Appendix A), you must provide evidence through a narrative or visual of this educational need through survey data, or times and locations of public meetings discussing this proposed charter school. (Please do not provide more than one sample survey form).

<u>Purposes of the Proposed Charter School:</u> In one page or less, describe how the proposed charter school will achieve one or more of the six legislated purposes, as specifically addressed in the NC charter school statute GS 115C-238.29A, and the proposed school's operations.

The Six Legislative Purposes of a Charter School are:

- 1. Create new professional opportunities for teachers, including the opportunities to be responsible for the learning program at the school site.
- 2. Hold schools accountable for meeting measurable student achievement results.
- 3. Provide parents and students with expanded choices in the types of educational opportunities that are available within the public school system.
- 4. Improving student learning.
- 5. Increasing learning opportunities for all students, with a special emphasis on at-risk or gifted students.
- 6. Encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods.

New Hope Charter School will use the Core Knowledge Sequence to guide its academic program in order to improve student learning (Legislative Purpose #4). While more common in charter schools in North Carolina, it is a major innovation as being a curriculum sequence that is coherent, cumulative and content specific both vertically (i.e. from first to second grade) and horizontally (i.e. from classroom to classroom in the same grade). The Core Knowledge Sequence is researched based and has demonstrated improvement in individual students as well as improvement in entire schools. A study conducted by researchers at Trinity University in conjunction with the Office Research and Evaluation of the San Antonio Independent School District found the following:

Mohegan School (located in the innermost South Bronx serving primarily Latino and African American students): the average improvement per pupil over a school year in the Total Language Arts Battery was more than twice the average improvement in the district. Aside from outperforming neighboring schools, Mohegan's disciplinary problems went down and attendance went up.

Three Oaks Elementary (located in Fort Myers, Florida): a three year longitudinal comparison of Three Oaks and a control group in the district found that although the control school began the study with higher scores, over a three-year period, Three Oaks overtook and surpassed the control school. As measured by the Total Battery of the California Test of Basic Skills, the mean at Three Oaks moved from 94 points below the national mean to a point above it. The standard deviation in students' scores narrowed from 65.77 to 33.64, indicating (as did other measures) that the lowest-performing students were being raised to the mean. Disadvantaged students made the greatest relative improvement. Pupil suspensions dropped to zero and teacher and student attendance increased simultaneously with higher scores on standardized reading tests.

A recent article in the Press Enterprise credits the implementation of Core Knowledge as the direct reason for Bryant Elementary's marked improvement in academics: "Bryant's Academic Performance Index, based on the state's annual standardized tests last spring, shot up 41 points to 814, on a scale of 200 to 1,000 with 800 as the statewide goal. The school made Adequate Yearly Progress goals under No Child Left Behind for the first time in at least

seven years" This achievement occurred in just two years after the implementation of Core Knowledge.

Research of The Core Knowledge Sequence found data indicating the following effects this education program has on the school:

- \* Provides an academic focus and encourage consistency in instruction
- \* Provides a plan for coherent, sequenced learning from grade to grade
- \* Promotes a community of learners adults and children
- \* Becomes an effective tool for lesson planning and communication among teachers and with parents
- \* Guide thoughtful purchases of school resources

Beyond these, the study identified some unexpected benefits:

- \* Core Knowledge created coordination in the curriculum
- \* Implementing Core Knowledge improved the professional lives of teachers Core Knowledge was viewed favorably by teachers and seen as an enhancement to their lives. Overwhelmingly, teachers enthusiastically encouraged their teacher friends to implement Core Knowledge. This is a very important finding.
- \* Implementing Core Knowledge led to increased teacher collaboration. Such genuine collaborative work among teachers that has a focus on the currculum and instruction is all too rare in education, the researchers note.
- \* Core Knowledge enriched students' classroom experience. Teachers reported that it was not just certain students who were excited by Core, but all students. The benefits are great for teaching those children who would normally not be exposed to such subjects at home.
- \* Core Knowledge challenged conventional assumptions about student ability. Many teachers reported being initially skeptical that Core Knowledge content was not developmentally appropriate for elementary students. However, almost all teachers interviewed found that no matter what students starting points were low achieving, average or high achieving they were able to grasp and gain from learning the Core material. One teacher commented: They may be six-year olds, but they can grasp a lot more knowledge than we thought before this.
- \* Students built on what they learned previously in Core Knowledge. Teachers found that in fact students make lasting academic connections because of the integration of the curriculum and its spiraling structure.
- \* Teachers report that students are learning to read bigger words sooner. There is an interest in reading and a desire to learn. At a number of schools, educators cited the fact that students are more interested in reading non-fiction as one of the main benefits of Core Knowledge.
- \* Core Knowledge increased parent satisfaction. "Parents are thrilled, thrilled, "according to one teacher, while another one added, "Our parents are elated with the results of Core Knowledge."

#### **Goals for the Proposed Charter School:**

1. Provide specific and measurable student achievement performance goals for the school's educational program and the method of demonstrating that students have attained the skills and knowledge specified for those goals. Address how often and when the information will be communicated to the governing board and other stakeholders. These goals should include specific and measurable performance objectives over the first five years of the schools existence.

Year	Goal	EOG Composite Target
2015-16	establish base line	at least 70% at or above grade level
2016-17	build growth	at least 73% at or above grade level
2017-18	accelerate growth	at least 80% at or above grade level
2018-19	continue growth	at least 83% at or above grade level
2019-20	continue growth	at least 87% at or above grade level

Information concerning achievement of annual performance goals will be communicated to the governing board and other stakeholders annually. Interim goals will be drafted by school administrators with progress being reported to the governing board during the course of the academic year.

2. How will the governing board know that the proposed public charter school is working toward attaining their mission statement?

The board will review the New Hope Charter School mission at each of its board will review both state The and internal academic assessments in order to judge progress toward mission fulfillment. Besides the North Carolina state mandated tests, faculty will also utilize data driven testing such as the Northwest Evaluation Associations (NWEA) MAP test. The results from MAP allows schools to link the RIT scale to the proficiency levels from state assessments and monitor student progress toward the proficiency standards for their states. The MAP test also allows the school to connect state standards to state-aligned MAP tests, as well as connecting state standards and the DesCartes continuum of learning to teacher reports. Additionally, the board will periodically review aggregate student data on character development produced by Athlos Academies, the provider of the character development curriculum which the board intends to have implemented at New Hope Charter School.

#### III.EDUCATION PLAN

(No more than ten total pages in this section)

**NOTE:** All sections of the Education Plan should align with all other sections of this application. The State Board of Education shall give priority consideration to the applicants who demonstrate potential for significant, meaningful innovation in education. Provide precise and clear explanations. Lack of response to any question or proper documentation will deem the application incomplete.

# <u>Instructional Program:</u>

Provide a detailed description of the overall instructional program of the proposed charter school, including major instructional methods, assessment strategies, and explain how this instructional program and model meet the needs of the targeted student population.

New Hope Charters K-8 curriculum includes language arts (reading, writing, grammar and usage, drama, poetry, fiction, nonfiction, speeches, sayings, and phrases), world and American history, geography, science (life, earth, and physical), mathematics, visual arts, and music. We will support the Core Knowledge Sequence by specific curricular resources and programs including the Spalding Method, Junior Great Books, and Saxon Math. Core Knowledge, Spalding Method, and Saxon Math are all aligned with the Common Core Standards. The opportunity for participation in academic competitions and extracurricular activities will supplement this curriculum. New Hope Charter seeks to implement practices to offer opportunities for students who are working above and below grade level. For students working above grade level in mathematics, our common grade level schedule for mathematics instruction accommodates their participation in appropriate grade-level work in the math program. Curriculum differentiation opportunities will continue to be offered in all classrooms.

The Sequence serves as the foundational planning document in each classroom. Core Knowledge topics are aligned with state and district standards, and curriculum plans are developed for teaching all requisite topics and standards. New Hope Charter will implement Core Knowledge through a multi-year professional development process. Extensive professional development will occur prior to school opening. Faculty and administration will create a school-wide implementation plan.

In partnership with Athlos Academy, New Hope Charter will provide students with the tools to develop a fit body. While Core Virtues educates students on virtues, the Athlos Athletic Curriculum is designed so that students develop performance character. For instance, leadership is caught more than it is taught. In order for students to develop this characteristic, they must be provided with actual opportunities to display leadership. The Athlos Athletic Curriculum focuses on twelve core performance traits. We believe that virtues and traits can and need to be systematically taught, developed, and nurtured in every student through a strong partnership with the family.

"Strong Character" was created to model, teach, and develop these core values in students. Strong Character is built on the foundation created by a Prepared Mind and a Healthy Body. The "Strong Character" Pillar is founded on solid research and a practical base drawing on the works of

Angela Duckworth, Martin Seligman, and Christopher Peterson. It also incorporates resources from the Core Virtues program and materials from the Center for Civic Education and the Center for the 4th and 5th Rs (SUNY Cortland).

The Athlos Athletic Program is a uniquely powerful vehicle for the development of Strong Character. Athletics and fitness is, and always has been, an ideal environment for one to cultivate character. Strong Character builds on the two types of virtues- moral values and performance character traits. Moral character consists of all those qualities that enable us to be our ethical best in relationships and roles as individuals and citizens. Performance character traits are those traits and qualities that can be purposely developed in every student including grit and persistence, selfcontrol, initiative, and leadership. The carefully selected twelve core performance character traits are developed on the turf and in the classroom and are evaluated for progression on the Athlos Character Report Card. is the systematic development of these key performance character traits through the Athlos Athletic Program that enables students to achieve their highest potential in any performance environment (e.g., in the classroom, on a team, and later in college and beyond).

# K-5 Curriculum and Instructional Design:

Describe the basic learning environment (e.g., classroom-based, independent study), including class size and structure.

New Hope Charter School will be a classroom-based school where students are engaged in learning throughout the school day. We will have five kindergarten classes with 21 students in each class. In grades one to five, we will have four classes per grade level with 26 students per class. Our class sizes are subject to change due to parent demand.

#### Provide a synopsis of the planned curriculum, including:

- 1. One sample course scope and sequence (preferably in graph form) in the Appendices (Appendix B) for one core subject (specific to the school's purpose) for the elementary division the school would ultimately serve.
- 2. Identify how this curriculum aligns with the proposed charter school's mission, targeted student population, and North Carolina Accountability Model.

The mission of New Hope Charter School is to develop within its students the intellectual capacity and personal habits and character qualities necessary to live independent, healthy and productive lives as paragons of a free and just society. The Core Knowledge Sequence provides the foundation for preparing students intellectually. In order to prepare students, a curriculum must be content specific, coherent, cumulative and content rich. To deliver effective instruction, a first grade teacher must know what is being taught in Kindergarten and in second grade. As discussed earlier, knowledge builds on knowledge. Core Knowledge has a demonstrated history of increasing academic achievement in both public and private schools which is the most important goal in grades K-8.

The Core Virtues curriculum provides the foundation for preparing students characters. In order to develop a strong character students must be provided

with an education in basic moral virtues needed to function in a free and democratic society. Students must be educated in foundational virtues such as fairness, courage, respect, kindness, diligence, responsibility, etc. Core Virtues aligns with the Core Knowledge Sequence and provides the intellectual foundation in developing a strong character.

The character education is also tied in with the athletic program. Every other week a "Character Huddle" is conducted with the students. In athletics, a "huddle" is a term to describe the time when the team comes together to communicate strategies, goals, and teamwork. "Character Huddles" are purposeful times when the teacher and coach assemble the class to engage and challenge them with thought-provoking ideas surrounding performance character development.

#### Character Huddles in Action:

- \* An element used with the Athletic Curriculum to draw awareness to that weeks character performance focus
- \* Teaching moments designed to take place on the turf with the intent to connect the character curriculum and athletic curriculum
- \* An opportunity to develop performance character traits as the students reflect on their own character growth when they experience both failure and success
- \* Assessment of progress tracked via the students Athletic Scorecard

#### Student Responsibilities in Huddles:

- \* Students will be challenged to think critically about each trait and prompted to provide examples and parallels to their own life on their Character Reflection Sheets
- \* Students will make cross-connection of performance traits and pertinence to the physical activity in which they are engaged
- \* Students will learn to create and work towards personal goals

#### Athlos Character Reflection Overview:

Reflection helps students increase the value of his or her learning experience by helping them to make meaning out of the process they are engaged in. It enables the learners to relate the new material to prior knowledge and therefore have a better understanding. Equally important, it also enhances the students meta-cognitive awareness.

In a typical character reflection session, there will be a group discussion based upon the Character Reflection Sheets the students were asked to complete over the course of the previous week. The teacher/coach may choose to discuss the reflection questions as a group or break out into smaller groups to create more student involvement. The students will be asked to integrate the information presented to them from the previous weeks Huddle and share responses from their Reflection Sheets in order to stimulate their continued growth and understanding of the power of the performance characteristic traits.

These teacher-directed peer discussions and student-led activities help students deepen their understanding of the twelve Performance Character Traits. It helps them understand how their ability to meet their personal goals and how to make these traits a part of their lives.

3. Describe the primary instructional strategies that the school will expect teachers to master and explain why these strategies will result in increased academic achievement for the targeted student population.

All our teachers will employ a cohesive set of research-based instructional methods and approaches, supported through training they will receive from high-quality professional development providers such as the nationally Professional Learning Communities ("PLCs"), recognized Instructional Strategies, and Quantum Learning. Our instruction methods include a powerful mix of direct (explicit) instruction, teacher lecture, differentiated instruction, modeling, guided practice, cooperative learning, independent practice, and individualized instruction that increases student engagement and significantly reduces behavioral issues in the classroom. These methods have proven to be effective with a wide range of students, including those who are currently performing below grade level, English Language Learners, and those students with special needs. The consistent use of these instructional methods and classroom management techniques at all grade levels will provide a strong, predictable, and self-reinforcing component to the overall school culture. This consistency will also continue to provide a foundation of understanding and support with all parents.

New Hope Charters PLC is based on the work of DuFour, Schmoker, Eaker, Fullan and others. PLCs are structured around three core concepts. The first is "Ensuring that Students Learn", a focus on learning, not teaching. The second is "A Culture of Collaboration", a systematic process where teachers work together to analyze and improve their classroom practice. The third is "A Focus on Results", where the effectiveness of the work is based on student achievement, and its improvement. The rich Core Knowledge curriculum of New Hope Charter and State Standards provide the foundation for the work of the PLC. Small teams of teachers and administrators meet frequently to review the progress of each student. Small teams of teachers also meet frequently for thoughtful and explicit examination of teaching practices, guided by formative student achievement information, in a systematic effort to improve the effectiveness of instruction.

We will offer opportunities and employ specific strategies for students who are working above and below grade level. For students working above grade level in mathematics, we will provide opportunities for acceleration. In addition, curriculum differentiation opportunities will be available including targeted and flexible grouping practices. NWEA's MAP test provides teachers with the tools to define flexible groups for instruction and personalized instruction. Curriculum differentiation opportunities will be offered in all classrooms. We will also promote co-curricular and extracurricular activities such as science fairs, spelling bees, public speaking contests, etc.

Through the PLC collaborative inquiry process, teachers will use data from ongoing assessments to identify the needs of individual students. Shared strategies to improve student learning are developed and implemented collaboratively meeting the needs of students below, at, and above grade level.

4. Provide a school academic calendar in Appendix C (minimum of 185 instructional days or 1,025

hours).

5. Describe in a brief narrative below on how the calendar coincides with the tenets of the proposed mission and education plan.

New Hope Charters annual school calendar reflects 185 school days over a nine and a half month period similar to what is offered at many NC public schools operating on a traditional (i.e. non year round) calendar. In 2015-16, school will start on Tuesday, August 25, and end on Thursday, June 9 (see Appendix C for full school calendar). However, in keeping with our mission to assist students developing a healthy life, our daily school schedule differs from traditional schools through the integration of our athletic curriculum where children get 30-60 minutes of exercise a day for four days a week, depending on grade level. The fitness program block will be staggered by grade level so that there are typically no more than three small groups at a time in the athletic facility. For an example of an individual teacher's schedule, please see Appendix C.

### 6-8 Curriculum and Instructional Design:

Describe the basic learning environment (e.g., classroom-based, independent study), including class size and structure.

New Hope Charter School will be a classroom-based school where students are engaged in learning throughout the school day. In grade six, we have four classes of 26 students per class. In seventh and eighth grades we will have four classes with 25 students per class. Our class sizes are subject to change due to parent demand.

#### Provide a synopsis of the planned curriculum, including:

- 1. One sample course scope and sequence (preferably in graph form) in the Appendices (Appendix B1) for one core subject (specific to the school's purpose) for the middle school division the school would ultimately serve.
- 2. Identify how this curriculum aligns with the proposed charter school's mission, targeted student population, and North Carolina Accountability Model.

New Hope Charter intends to offer a seamless curriculum through all grades. Please see description outlined above in K - 5 Curriculum and Instructional Design Section.

3. Describe the primary instructional strategies that the school will expect teachers to master and explain why these strategies will result in increased academic achievement for the targeted student population.

Please see answer given for the same question in the above in K - 5 Curriculum and Instructional Design Section.

- 4. Provide a school academic calendar in Appendix C (minimum of 185 instructional days or 1,025 hours).
- 5. Describe in a brief narrative below on how the calendar coincides with the tenets of the proposed mission and education plan.

Please see answer given for the same question in the above in  $\mbox{\ensuremath{K}}$  -  $\mbox{\ensuremath{5}}$  Curriculum and Instructional Design Section.

# **Special Programs and "At-Risk" Students**

1. Describe the methods and clear systems of prevention and intervention teachers will utilize to provide assistance to students that are not performing at expected levels: ensuring continued progress and academic student growth.

Effective instruction is the first tier of the New Hope Charters RTI process. Teachers will utilize a variety of instructional strategies, including flexible grouping, modeling, guided practice, cooperative learning, and independent practice, to address the needs of learners of various levels and modalities. Intervention support, through teachers, paraprofessionals, and computer assisted instruction will be used in level 2 of RTI. In level 3 of RTI, Student Study Teams (SSTs) convene if a series of progressive interventions and scaffolded instruction do not yield appropriate, measurable student progress.

Overview of Intervention Strategies (RTI): Level 1:

- \* Common formative assessments and expectations
- \* Regular staff meetings to review student progress
- \* Case management system monitored by the Principal
- \* Progress reports to parents
- \* Staff commitment to provide assistance to students
- \* Grading system that focuses on learning
- \* Focus on accelerating student progress and meeting student needs
- \* Development of Personalized Learning Plan
- \* Tutoring

Level 2: Students not progressing with initial strategies are moved into secondary strategies:

- \* Tutorial program in classrooms
- \* After school tutoring
- \* Computer assisted support
- \* Mentoring
- \* Counseling/parent meetings
- \* Case management meetings to closely monitor student progress in intervention

# Level 3:

\* Formal SST is held to determine interventions strategies to meet the specified need of the student.

New Hope Charter's Professional Learning Community (discussed earlier in the application) serves as an organizational umbrella, bringing together all aspects of the educational program; curriculum (content), student engagement and work, brings into focus the effectiveness of instructional methods, and assessment of each student. A PLC is designed to meet the needs of all students especially the exceptional needs of sub-groups of students (e.g., English Language Learners and students with 504 Plans.)

2. Explain how the instructional plan and curriculum will meet the needs of English Language

Learner (ELL) students, including the following:

- a) Methods for identifying ELL students.
- b) Specific instructional programs, practices, and strategies the school will employ to ensure academic success and equitable access to the core academic program for ELL students.
- c) Plans for monitoring and evaluating the progress and success of ELL students, including exiting students from ELL services.

New Hope Charter will initially identify English Language Learners through the student enrollment process which will ask the student's primary language. To determine ELP (English Language Proficiency) growth and progress, New Hope Charter will use appropriate state testing standards and materials.

The Core Knowledge website provides guidance regarding adapting the Core Knowledge Sequence for English Language Learners. The Core Knowledge Sequence provides the foundation, but the following adaptations will be used as appropriate to assist English Language Learners:

# Strategies:

- \* Introducing topics
- \* Frontloading of information
- \* Taking picture walks
- \* Concept building
- \* Posting labeled visuals
- \* Highlighting selectively
- \* Brainstorming
- \* Using visuals to develop vocabulary

#### Working with Text:

- \* Paraphrasing
- \* Using visual enhancement
- \* Using chants
- \* Using Multi-media presentations (PowerPoint, films, filmstrips, etc.)
- \* Using dramatization
- \* Conducting reader's theater
- \* Reducing non-essential text

#### Literacy Development/Assessments:

- \* Using graphic organizers
- \* Using cloze paragraphs (cloze paragraphs are similar to fill-in-the-blank exercises.)
- \* Conducting cooperative learning activities
- \* Using graphic depictions
- \* Conducting shared writing
- \* Administering pictorial tests
- \* Using frame writing

Additionally the Spalding Method's The Writing Road to Reading approach is effective in assisting English Language Learners and students with learning disabilities. The National Reading Panel identified the following components for effective instruction to English Language Learners: (a) phonemic awareness, (b) systematic phonics, (c) vocabulary, and (d) fluency. All of these components are integrated parts of The Writing Road to Reading and diagnostic teaching is embedded within making adaptations part of the daily

instruction. The Spalding Method website quotes as follows: "Unlike most programs that teach spelling, writing, and reading in separate units, Spalding's integrated instruction reinforces skill and concept acquisition and provides multiple opportunities for practice and application. Word usage, handwriting, and syllable division are taught in spelling and reinforced in the writing lesson. Integrated instruction is especially important for students unfamiliar with the sounds and conventions of spoken and written English."

Throughout the school, staff will utilize a range of research based instructional methods that assist English Language Learners. This includes Total Physical Response, and Language Scaffolding and other methods. The schools staff will be using Professional Learning Communities to further innovate teaching strategies for English Language Learners and find other assessment tools to enable ELL teachers to change strategies when necessary.

NWEAs Map test will also provide data to assist the school in tracking an individual ELLs progress.

New Hope Charter's Professional Learning Community (discussed earlier in the application) serves as an organizational umbrella, bringing together all aspects of the educational program; curriculum (content), student engagement and work, brings into focus the effectiveness of instructional methods, and assessment of each student. A PLC is designed to meet the needs of all students especially the exceptional needs of sub-groups of students (e.g., English Language Learners and students with 504 Plans.)

- 3. Explain how the school will identify and meet the needs of intellectually gifted students, including the following:
  - a) Specific instructional programs, practices, strategies, and opportunities the school will employ or provide to enhance their abilities.
  - b) Plans for monitoring and evaluating the progress and success of intellectually gifted students.

Curriculum differentiation has been shown to significantly improve the quality and quantity of learning for all students. New Hope Charter will utilize curriculum that is differentiated to best meet the needs of each individual student. This successfully-proven teaching methodology will continue to include acceleration, depth, complexity, and novelty.

- \* Acceleration: The rate at which a student progresses through curricular material may be adjusted over time to reflect a need to move more quickly or a need to give more time in a particular area of study. Teachers will preassess to determine which students have already mastered concepts to be taught. Those students who have mastered the concepts currently under study will be given the opportunity to delve more deeply into those concepts.
- \* Depth: Developing a thirst for knowledge in students requires nurturing interests that may not have been previously revealed by a cursory study of a subject. The study of one or more subjects in greater depth than allowed by the core curriculum will increase all students' understanding and ignite in some the desire to search even deeper.

- \* Complexity: Many children quickly master being a student. They easily learn to memorize and, to a certain extent, use facts in order to pass tests. True learning and creation of new knowledge requires going beyond and making connections rarely achieved in our classrooms today. Teachers may create environments that foster this type of learning by adding complexity to the core curriculum.
- \* Novelty: Many students come to us with a passion for learning about a particular subject. Encouraging a student to pursue this passion, often with an independent study contract, can lead to the discovery of new knowledge (for the student and sometimes for mankind), as well as the discovery of new passions to be followed. Students will be encouraged to find and follow an interest through an independent study contract.

We will offer opportunities and employ specific strategies for students who are working above and below grade level. For students working above grade level in mathematics, we will provide opportunities for acceleration. In addition, curriculum differentiation opportunities will be available including targeted and flexible grouping practices. NWEAS MAP test provides teachers with the tools to define flexible groups for instruction and personalized instruction. Curriculum differentiation opportunities will be offered in all classrooms. We will also promote co-curricular and extracurricular activities such as science fairs, spelling bees, public speaking contests, etc.

Through the PLC collaborative inquiry process, teachers will use data from ongoing assessments to identify the needs of individual students. Shared strategies to improve student learning are developed and implemented collaboratively meeting the needs of students at and above grade level. NWEAs Map test will also provide the data for teachers to identify progress and success of students performing above grade level.

#### **Exceptional Children**

The public charter school cannot deny admission to any child eligible for special education services as identified under the federal legislation Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEA), IDEA regulations, and Article 9 115C of the North Carolina General Statutes, North Carolina Policies Governing Services for Children with Disabilities. All public schools are responsible for hiring licensed and 'highly qualified' special educators pursuant to law. Public schools are required to provide a full continuum of services to meet the unique needs of ALL students with disabilities.

#### Identification and Records

- 1. Explain how you will identify students who are enrolled within the charter school that have previously been found to be eligible for special education services or are protected under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.
- 2. Provide the process for identifying students who may be eligible for special education services as identified in the federal 'Child Find' mandate. Be sure to include how student evaluations and assessments will be completed.
- 3. Provide a plan detailing how the records of students with disabilities and 504 Accommodation plans will be properly managed.
  - a) Requesting Records from previous schools
  - b) Record Confidentiality (on site)

c) Record Compliance (on site)

Our enrollment form will contain the following question: What special services is your child receiving? (please check all boxes that apply) Special Education: Resource (RSP), Special Day Class (SDC), Speech/Language, 504, Attach Most Recent IEP

New Hope Charter will remain in compliance with the following:

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99) is a Federal law that protects the privacy of student education records. The law applies to all schools that receive funds under an applicable program of the U.S. Department of Education.

- \* FERPA gives parents certain rights with respect to their children's education records. These rights transfer to the student when he or she reaches the age of 18 or attends a school beyond the high school level. Students to whom the rights have transferred are "eligible students."
- \* Parents or eligible students have the right to inspect and review the student's education records maintained by the school. Schools are not required to provide copies of records unless, for reasons such as great distance, it is impossible for parents or eligible students to review the records. Schools may charge a fee for copies.
- \* Parents or eligible students have the right to request that a school correct records which they believe to be inaccurate or misleading. If the school decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student then has the right to a formal hearing. After the hearing, if the school still decides not to amend the record, the parent or eligible student has the right to place a statement with the record setting forth his or her view about the contested information.
- \* Generally, schools must have written permission from the parent or eligible student in order to release any information from a student's education record. However, FERPA allows schools to disclose those records, without consent, to the following parties or under the following conditions (34 CFR 99.31):
- \* School officials with legitimate educational interest;
- \* Other schools to which a student is transferring;
- \* Specified officials for audit or evaluation purposes;
- \* Appropriate parties in connection with financial aid to a student;
- \* Organizations conducting certain studies for or on behalf of the school;
- \* Accrediting organizations;
- \* To comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena;
- \* Appropriate officials in cases of health and safety emergencies; and
- \* State and local authorities, within a juvenile justice system, pursuant to specific State law.

#### Exceptional Children's Education Programming

- 1. Describe the educational programs, strategies, and additional supports the school will provide to ensure a full continuum of services for students with disabilities.
- 2. Describe the methods and support systems that will be in place to ensure students with disabilities receive a Free and Appropriate Public Education (FAPE).

- 3. Describe how implementation of the Individualized Education Plan (IEP) will be monitored and
  - reported to the student, parents and relevant staff.
- 4. Describe the proposed plan for providing related services.

The Core Knowledge Sequence provides many opportunities to appropriately serve students eligible for services under 504 and IDEIA for special Knowledge professional development Core workshops information, strategies, and suggested modifications for each grade level. The Day-to-Day Planner includes a CD which outlines some strategies for modifications. To illustrate the flexibility of Core Knowledge, the Core Knowledge website quotes as follows: "Typically, special education is distinguished from standard education in its different emphasis between skill and content instruction. Special Education is fundamentally skillbased in the areas of reading, language, and math, whereas Core Knowledge emphasizes acquisition of content knowledge. While Core Knowledge has some skill-based objectives, the major focus of IEP (Individualized Education Program) goals is skills. Core Knowledge topics encourage and motivate students to develop their skills; it's more interesting to read about stimulating topics rather than the same basals - especially with the need for repetition. Repetition doesn't have to be the same material - but can be the same reading vocabulary used in different selections, for example. Adapting Core Knowledge topics to meet special needs should be a rewarding experience for student and teacher."

The Spalding Method's The Reading Road to Writing is also structured to appropriately serve students with disabilities. The approach is multisensory and diagnostic, providing daily and ongoing opportunities to appropriately serve students eligible for services under 504 and IDEIA.

Through New Hope Charter's partnership with Athlos Academy, Athlos Academy has investigated curriculum adaptations for adaptive physical education for students with special needs. In August of 2001, the Department of Education released a report entitled "Creating Equal Opportunities for Children and with Disabilities to Participate in Physical Education Extracurricular Activities." The report indicates that physical activity is 4.5 times lower for children with disabilities than their peers without disabilities. The report acknowledges that there is limited understanding on how research for children without disabilities translates into guidance for physical educational programs directed to children with disabilities. However, given that physical activity for disabled children is so low, it is especially important that special needs children receive physical education instruction. The report recommends that the patterns of teaching must be altered to promote instruction rather than competition to ensure that the individual student is making progress. The school will be appropriately modifying general physical education activities using concepts such as decreasing distance, using lighter equipment, lowering and enlarging targets.

The design, layout and floor plan will be adjusted to accommodate additional special education rooms as appropriate for student needs. Please see Appendix U for more information about special education.

### **Student Performance Standards**

- 1. Describe the student performance standards for the school as a whole.
- 2. Explain the use of any evaluation tool or assessment that the proposed charter school will use in addition to any state or federally mandated tests. Describe how this data will be used to drive instruction and improve the curriculum over time for the benefit of students.
- 3. Explain the policies and standards for promoting students, including students with special needs, from one grade level to the next. Discuss how and when promotion criteria will be communicated to parents and students.
- 4. Provide the public charter school's exit standards for graduating **ALL** students. These standards should set forth what students in the **last grade served** will know and be able to do. Be sure to include plans for the "At-Risk" population.

History/Social Studies: Students will understand and apply civic, historical, and geographical knowledge in order to serve as citizens in todays world of diverse cultures.

Mathematics: Students will develop abilities to reason logically and to understand and apply mathematical processes and concepts, including those within arithmetic, algebra, geometry, and other mathematical subjects which the staff and school governing board deem appropriate.

Language Arts: Students will demonstrate strong reading, writing, listening, speaking, and presentation skills, in multiple forms of expression (e.g., written, oral, multimedia), with communication skills appropriate to the setting and audience. They will comprehend and critically interpret multiple forms of expression, including literature from various time periods and cultures.

Science: Students will successfully utilize scientific research and inquiry methods to understand and apply the major concepts underlying various branches of science, which may include physics, chemistry, biology, ecology, astronomy, and earth sciences.

Underlying and utilized throughout each of the above subject areas will be other core skills such as: critical thinking skills: e.g., problem-solving, analyzing, and applying knowledge, the ability to effectively use technology, creative expression through various forms of the arts, e.g., music, visual/studio arts, etc., and knowledge of pertinent issues of health and the development of physical fitness.

New Hope Charter intends to use Northwest Evaluation Associations MAP test. NWEA publishes two types of information to empower educators to use assessment data at the state level:

Scale Alignment Studies: NWEA has conducted studies to link the RIT scale to the proficiency levels from many state assessments. Using this information with NWEA assessments, schools can monitor their students' progress toward the proficiency standards for their states.

Goal Structures: NWEA goal structures connect the content from state standards to each reporting area of a state-aligned MAP test. Using NWEA Goal Structures, the concepts in Teacher Reports may be directly connected

to each state's unique standards as well as the DesCartes continuum of learning.

Any student qualified for admission to a North Carolina Public School is qualified for admission to New Hope Charter. Students will be required, after admission but before matriculation, to provide evidence of successful completion of the previous school year in the form of a fourth quarter report card, attendance records, and documentation of EOG scores where applicable. A birth certificate and current immunization record will also be required. A student satisfactorily completing each grades work will be promoted to the next grade. Any decision concerning promotion vs. nonpromotion will be made after considering all facts related to a childs development (emotional, physical, andsocial, as well as intellectual and academic), collected from a wide range of sources throughout the year. We will make every effort not to displace a student who is being retained, but will be on a space available basis. Students are required to demonstrate that they have mastered grade-level expectations in order to be promoted to the next grade. Grade-level expectations are based on the following: scores on achievement tests, teacher evaluation of students abilities and effort, students motivation level, proficiency assessments, parental involvement and family commitment to supporting the students academic achievement, attendance. When a student is identified as being at risk of retention, parents/guardians will be notified in writing as early in the school year as practical. Parents/guardians shall be provided an opportunity to consult with the teacher(s) responsible for the decision to retain the student. For more information, please see Appendix D-Student Handbook.

#### **Student Conduct:**

Provide a brief narrative that disseminates how student conduct will be governed at the proposed charter school and how this plan **aligns** with the overall mission and proposed Education Plan of the charter school.

Provide a draft copy of the student handbook specific to the proposed charter school within the appendices (Appendix D).

Be sure to include:

- 1. Practices the school will use to promote effective discipline.
- 2. A preliminary list and definitions of the offenses which may result in suspension or expulsion of students.
- 3. An explanation of how the school will take into account the rights of students with disabilities in regards to these actions that may or must lead to suspension and expulsion.
- 4. Policies and procedures disseminating due process rights, including grievance procedures, for when a student is suspended or expelled.

The mission of New Hope Charter School is to develop within its students the intellectual capacity and personal habits and character qualities necessary to live independent, healthy and productive lives as paragons of a free and just society. In order to develop these qualities, New Hope Charter expects the following of students:

Be Responsible! We will teach the children to respond thoughtfully to life and its issues and problems--not react carelessly to it! We want them to become "response-able" so they will grow and learn to "behave themselves"

and depend less on outside controls to manage their behavior.

Be Resourceful! We will teach the children to find and use resources that will point them to solutions. Those solutions include the quest for answers to curriculum questions, as well as those found in every day, real-life issues. They will learn that it is okay to ask for help, and it is okay to offer and give help in a school setting.

Be Respectful! We will teach the children about self-respect so they can learn to respect others and property. They will learn that selfishness and self-respect are opposite attributes.

For more information, please see Appendix D - Student Handbook.

#### IV. GOVERNANCE, OPERATIONS and CAPACITY

(No more than ten total pages in this section)

**NOTE:** Please answer all sections completely. Do not use "same as LEA" or "whatever the law states". Lack of proper documentation could deem the application incomplete.

# **Governance:**

# Private Nonprofit Corporation:

\*The nonprofit corporation must be officially authorized by the NC Secretary of State by the final approval interview date.

Name of Private Nonprofit: New Hope Charter School Inc.

Mailing Address: 6417 Chapman Court

City/State/Zip: Raleigh NC 27612

Street Address: 6417 Chapman Court

Phone: 919-608-3593

Fax:

Name of registered agent and address: Norman L. George III

6417 Chapman Ct. Raleigh, NC 27612

FEDERAL TAX ID: 46-4224720

# Tax-Exempt Status 501 (c)(3)

The private nonprofit listed as the responsible organization for the proposed charter school has received 501 (c)(3) status:

Yes (copy of letter from federal government attached: Appendix E) X No

**NOTE:** If the non-profit organization has yet to obtain the 501(c)(3) status, the tax-exempt status must be obtained from the Internal Revenue Service within twenty-four (24) months of the date the Charter Application is given final approval.

### **Governance and Organizational Structure of Private Non-Profit Organization:**

The private nonprofit corporation is the legal entity that has responsibility for all aspects of the proposed charter school. Its members should reflect the ability to operate a charter school from both business and education perspectives.

Please complete the table provided depicting the initial members of the nonprofit organization.

<b>Board Member Name</b>	Board Title	County/State of Residence	<b>Current Occupation</b>
Elizabeth Ferm	Vice-Chairman	CHATHAM	Advertising

			Production Manager
Roger Gerber	Chairman	СНАТНАМ	Charter School Founder & Public Education Reformer
Loren Pease	Secretary	CHATHAM	Freelance Artist & Art Instructor
Charleen Cody	Director	CHATHAM	Medical Recruiter
John McConnell, Jr.	Director	WAKE	Commercial Real Estate Broker
Norman George, III	Treasurer	WAKE	Charter School Founder & Operator
Glen Futrell	Director	WAKE	Commercial Real Estate Broker

#### Please provide the following in this location of the APPLICATION:

- 1. A description of the governance structure of the proposed charter school, including the governing board's functions, primary duties, roles and responsibilities as it relates to overseeing the charter school. Include how the board will recruit, hire, and supervise the lead administrator. The main responsibility of the Board will be to ensure that the school fulfills the tenets of its charter and its mission. More specifically, the Board will perform all functions essential to governing an effective school and be responsible for its fiscal and academic policies and for meeting the requirements of applicable laws. This includes:
- \* Articulating, maintaining and driving the school's mission throughout the entire school
- \* Community
- \* Holding school administrators, faculty, staff, and other parties engaged by the school in its business and educational activities accountable for the successful operation of the school and its ability to deliver improved academic results
- \* Approving academic goals
- \* Monitoring performance toward academic and operating goals
- \* Reviewing and approving the annual budget, as well as ensuring proper financial procedures are in place and being effectively implemented
- \* Appointing officers, delegates or committees as needed
- \* Adopting, amending and repealing bylaws as needed
- \* Conducting its business, carrying on its operations and exercising its powers as a corporation, and doing so consistent with all appropriate laws regarding ethics and open meetings.
- \* Participating with others in any corporation, partnership, limited partnership, joint venture or other association of any kind, or in any transaction on behalf of the school
- \* Retaining an independent auditor to conduct an annual audit of the School
- \* Retaining independent legal counsel

The Board is responsible to uphold the expectations and goals set forth in the Charter.

2. Describe the size, current and desired composition, powers, and duties of the governing board. Identify key skills, areas of expertise, and constituencies that will be represented on the governing board. Explain how this governance structure and composition will help ensure that a) the school will be an educational and operational success; b) the board will evaluate the success of the school and school leader; and c) there will be active and effective representation of key stakeholders, including parents.

The Board contains seven committed members with various expertise that will serve a charter school well. Two of the Board members have over 15 years charter school experience specific to North Carolina. The Board members contain experienced business persons in fields varying from freelance art, land development, charter school development and advertising. These varied experiences bring many perspectives needed in the successful running of a charter school. Many of the Board members are parents who share a passion for school choice and new educational opportunities in the State of North Carolina.

3. Explain the procedure by which the founding board members have been recruited and selected. If a position is vacant, how and on what timeline will new members be recruited and added to the board?

The schools mission statement was adopted as a response to the need and parent demand our board perceives in eastern Chatham and western Wake Counties for both a rigorous academic program and a systematic, and effective approach to inculcating and reinforcing the moral character traits and healthy personal habits likely to propel a student to success in school and beyond, and which counteract the negative consequences of moral decay presently having a great impact on American society at large. The Board members contain parents from Chatham County and members who have been involved in the charter school movement for over 15 years. All Board positions have been filled.

4. Outline below the strategic board calendar detailing how often the board will meet according to the bylaws established.

In the first five years, at least once a month and as needed.

5. What kinds of orientation or training will new board members receive, and what kinds of ongoing professional development will existing board members receive? The plan for training and development should include a timetable, specific topics to be addressed, and requirements for participation (Board Policies Draft: Appendix J).

Policy development will be an immediate focus for the Board, and we recognize the need to quickly develop and/or refine effective policies related to personnel policies, procurement and vendor contract policies, conflict of interest policies and travel and reimbursement policies.

The Board will develop informational packets and policy manuals for new members. The Board will participate in training webinars provided by the Department of Public Instruction, seek advice from local experts and utilize training from the North Carolina Alliance of Public Charter Schools, the NC Charter School Association and similar organizations. Board training topics will include academics, finance, marketing, leadership and governance, partnering with the community, developing parent participation, etc. The Board currently includes members who have over 15 years charter school experience. The Board has not completed a Policy Manual at this time, but will develop this after charter approval.

6. Describe the board's ethical standards and procedures for identifying and addressing conflicts of interest. Identify any existing relationships that could pose actual or perceived conflicts if the

application is approved; discuss specific steps that the board will take to avoid any actual conflicts and to mitigate perceived conflicts.

There are no existing relationships among board members that pose conflicts of interest for the corporation.

Ethical standards and procedures for identifying and addressing conflicts are described in the following passage from the proposed Bylaws:

- "A Director shall inform the Board of any direct or indirect conflict of interest which the Director has with regard to any transaction contemplated by the Board (a "Conflict of Interest"). A Conflict of Interest shall exist in Board actions including, but not be limited to, actions concerning a transaction in which the Director:
- (a) has a material financial interest; or
- (b) is presently serving as a director, trustee, officer, or general partner of another party. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 55A-8-31 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the Director with a Conflict of Interest may participate in the discussion, but may not vote on the transaction. The transaction is authorized, approved, or ratified by the vote of a majority of the Directors in office who have no Conflict of Interest (which must be more than one Director) and when a majority of Directors who have no Conflict of Interest so vote, a quorum is deemed to be present at the meeting for purposes of that vote.

The Corporation may not enter into a contract with a related person to the extent such contract and any transfers in connection therewith might cause or imply private benefit under the relevant sections of the Code, and applicable provisions of state ethical requirements for local government officials."

- 7. Explain the decision-making processes the board will use to develop school policies. Policies will be developed with the support of legal counsel and they will be reviewed and approved at public Board meetings. Policies will be reviewed at least annually. With guidance from legal counsel and by referencing state law, SBOE policies and local regulations, the Board will ensure that the school has all required policies and/or practices and procedures in place, including but not limited to a student code of conduct, Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), special education and ELL student identification and related services, first amendment rights and protections, parent involvement, school safety procedures, and technology use. Policies will be provided to parents and students via the parent/student handbook and/or the school's website.
  - 8. Describe any advisory bodies, councils, or associations listed in the organization chart or to be formed, including the roles and duties of that body, and the reporting structure as it relates to the school's governing body and leadership.

The Board will have an advisory council that will consist of parents, business persons, and members of the community to better serve New Hope Charter. The advisory council is an advisory board only and does have any authority over the school. Any contracted service provider is subject at all times to Board authority. Acadia-Northstar is a financial accounting provider with charter school experience that the school will likely contract with. Contracted companies are subject to Board approval and their performance will be evaluated by the Board.

9. Discuss the school's grievance process for parents and staff members. Parents:

New Hope Academys goal is to provide an environment that permits all members of the Academy community to engage in constructive communication. Generally, such communication should take place directly between the involved individuals.

Should a difficulty or problem arise regarding your child, we ask that you use the following process to solve it as expeditiously as possible. First, request a telephone or personal conference with your childs teacher. Almost all issues and problems can be resolved at this level. Parents may request a conference with a teacher by sending a written note, an email, or by leaving a telephone message indicating the nature of the concern and giving several available times and dates for the conference to take place. In like manner, parents are expected to reply to a teachers request for a conference. Immediate effective communication fosters partnership between home and school and is one way of modeling similar home/school values to the students. If resolution of the problem or concern is not reached at this conference, the principal (and/or designee) is advised of the situation and is called in to assist.

Any concerns which are not related to the classroom should be brought to the attention of the principal (and/or designee).

#### Staff Members:

Complaints regarding allegations of harassment or discrimination should be made pursuant to the specific policies addressing those issues. The purpose of this Dispute Resolution Policy is to afford all employees of New Hope Academy the opportunity to seek internal resolution of their work-related concerns. All employees have free access to their immediate supervisors or to other New Hope Academy administrators of their choice to informally express their work-related concerns.

If complaints cannot be resolved informally, employees may file a written complaint with the Principal as soon as possible after the events that give rise to the employees work-related concerns. The written complaint should set forth in detail the basis for the employees complaint.

An objective and timely investigation of all complaints, which cannot be resolved informally, will be undertaken. This includes meeting separately with the employee and with others who either are named in the complaint or who may have knowledge of the facts set forth in the complaint.

New Hope Academy will attempt to treat all internal complaints and their investigation as confidential, recognizing, however, that in the course of investigating and resolving internal complaints some dissemination of information to others may be necessary or appropriate.

Upon completion of the investigation, the Principal shall report the finding(s) to the employee in writing. If warranted, Administration will bring both parties to engage in the Dispute Resolution Process. Mediation is conducted on the basis of the following points:

- \* Identifying both parties needs and interests.
- \* Generating alternatives and solutions.
- \* Choosing a solution that provides maximum joint benefit.
- \* Enforcing non-retaliation.

If an employee has filed a complaint in good faith, the employee will not be disciplined or otherwise penalized for lodging the complaint. If an employee believes that he or she is being retaliated against for lodging a complaint, the employee should immediately notify the Principal or the Business/Personnel Office.

It is important that New Hope Academy always provides a consistent message when communicating inside and outside the organization. A consistent message is imperative to successfully "branding" an organization. Additionally, there are many regulations regarding the types of information that can/should be released outside the organization. This policy was developed as a guide to employees in relation to communications on New Hope Academys behalf.

# Governance and Organizational Structure of Private Non-Profit Organization (continued)

# **Include in the Appendices:**

- A well-defined <u>organizational chart</u> showing the relationship of the Board of Directors to the parents and staff of the proposed charter school. This chart should also include lines of authority to and from any outside entity that will play a role in managing or supporting the charter school (such as educational service providers, advisory bodies or parent/teacher councils). (Appendix F)
- 2. A one-page resume from each founding board member and responses to the questions found on the Charter School Board Member Form (Appendix G).
- 3. The proposed by-laws, which must include a Conflict of Interest Policy for board members and a stated commitment to the NC Open Meetings Law (Appendix H).
- 4. A copy of the articles of incorporation, if available. If not available, this document must be available prior to interview by SBE, the applicant must demonstrate that it has been applied for prior to submission of the proposed application. (Appendix I)
- 5. Copy of any board policies if adopted already (Appendix J).
- 6. Copies of meeting minutes (if available), relevant to the development of the charter school plan, during the application process (Appendix K).

# <u>Proposed Management Organization (Educational Management Organization or Charter Management Organization)</u>

If the proposed school does not intend to contract with an education service provider, mark "Not Applicable" and follow the direction #3 in the Application Specifications.

#### X Not Applicable

<u>Private School Conversions: complete</u> ONLY if the proposed charter is a private school conversion. Otherwise, mark "Not Applicable" and follow the direction #3 in the Application Specifications. X Not Applicable

Applicable" and follow the direction #3 in the Application Specifications. Understand that the replication means that a new charter school will be governed separately from the charter school the application is modeled after.

# X Not Applicable

# **Projected Staff:**

Provide, as Appendix M, a list of positions anticipated for the charter school; (e.g., principal or director; finance officer, administrative support staff; teachers (part-time and full-time); paraprofessionals/teaching assistants, clerical, and maintenance.). Be mindful that your predicted administration and staff match the projected enrollment noted in Section I, course offerings and align with the proposed budget.

### Staffing Plans, Hiring, and Management

Include the following information for the proposed charter school:

New Hope Charter will advertise with local newspapers and will post the employment application on the School website. We will implement a non-discriminate on the basis of race, color, (HR) procedure, which will be fully compliant with the North Carolina state laws and No Child Left Behind. We will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, creed, sex, ethnicity, mental or physical disability, age, religion, ancestry or athletic performance in the provision of employment and services. We will practice non-sectarian employment practices. We will require background checks of its employees as required by the applicable laws to ensure the safety of the school and all students. Annual surveys will be completed by school staff to ensure employment satisfaction.

2. Provide a description of the relationship that will exist between the charter school employees and the nonprofit board. Provide as Appendix L, a draft of the employment policies to be implemented by the proposed charter school.

The Board of Directors is the legal entity and is responsible for the organization. The Board will govern the organization and provide oversight. The day-to-day management of New Hope Charter is undertaken by the faculty and staff employed by the organization. Please see Appendix N for more information.

4. Outline the board's procedures for hiring and dismissing school personnel, including conducting criminal background checks.

Employment verification includes criminal history background checks in addition to reference checks. Employees are required to submit fingerprints in accordance with applicable state law prior to beginning work. All offers of employment are contingent upon satisfactory results of these employment screening processes. New Hope Charter reserves the right to periodically update the background check records for employees. Failure to complete a fingerprint background check in accordance with state law or receipt of an unsatisfactory result may result in termination of employment.

is New Hope Charters policy that we will not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities with regard to any aspect of their Hope Charter recognizes that some individuals employment. New disabilities perform the essential functions of can а position with reasonable accommodations made at work. Reasonable accommodations will be made to enable essential functions of the job. Please see Appendix N for more information.

5. Outline the school's proposed salary range and employment benefits for all levels of employment.

The proposed annual salary range is \$25,000 to \$85,000. The board plans to offer the same benefits to all levels of employment, including health insurance, and a private retirement plan.

6. Provide the procedures for employee grievance and/or termination.

If complaints cannot be resolved informally, employees may file a written complaint with the Principal as soon as possible after the events that give rise to the employees work-related concerns. The written complaint should set forth in detail the basis for the employees complaint.

An objective and timely investigation of all complaints, which cannot be resolved informally, will be undertaken. This includes meeting separately with the employee and with others who either are named in the complaint or who may have knowledge of the facts set forth in the complaint. New Hope Charter will attempt to treat all internal complaints and their investigation as confidential, recognizing, however, that in the course of investigating and resolving internal complaints some dissemination of information to others may be necessary or appropriate. Upon completion of the investigation, the Principal shall report the finding(s) to the employee in writing. If warranted, Administration will bring both parties to engage in the Dispute Resolution Process.

Mediation is conducted on the basis of the following points:

- o Identifying both parties needs and interests.
- o Generating alternatives and solutions.
- o Choosing a solution that provides maximum joint benefit.
- o Enforcing non-retaliation.

If an employee has filed a complaint in good faith, the employee will not be disciplined or otherwise penalized for lodging the complaint. If an employee believes that he or she is being retaliated against for lodging a complaint, the employee should immediately notify the Principal or the Business/Personnel Office.

7. Identify any positions that will have dual responsibilities (within or without the organization) and the funding source for each position.

No positions are planned at this time that fit this description.

8. Describe the plans to have qualified staffing adequate for the anticipated special needs population, means for providing qualified staffing for ELL and gifted students.

The board intends to hire a certified EC coordinator to oversee services given to EC students, ELL and gifted students. EC teachers will be on staff to provide services, and other personnel with the necessary skills and certification may be contracted to meet student needs in accordance with state and federal law.

9. Provide a narrative detailing the roles and responsibilities, qualifications and appropriate licenses that each position must have to be hired by the non-profit organization and effectively perform the job function(s).

The Principal and Assistant Principal will possess teaching and administrative licensure from the State of North Carolina. Teachers will possess the following minimum teaching credentials: Bachelor of Arts or Science, Certification appropriate to the grade level in which duties and responsibilities are required, Secondary Teachers will have a subject matter concentration in the area of teaching responsibility. It is anticipated that as many as teachers as possible will be employed who possess a graduate degree.

Teacher assistant: A minimum of two years of post high school education and/or commensurate experience in skill development through prior employment as a teacher assistant for a period of five years.

Clerical: A minimum of two years post high school education and/or commensurate experience in skill development through prior employment as a school office employee.

Custodial: A minimum requirement of a high school education and/or commensurate work experience in skill development through prior employment as an institutional custodian or maintenance employee will be required.

# **Staff Evaluation and Professional Development**

1. Identify the positions responsible for maintaining teacher licensure requirements and professional development.

The school principal will be responsible for ensuring that licensure requirements are met for the school overall. The principal will also be responsible for determining professional development activities for faculty and staff.

2. Provide a detailed plan noting how the school will mentor, retain, and evaluate staff in a format that matches the school's mission, educational program, and meet the teacher certification and licensure requirements for teachers as prescribed by state law and No Child Left Behind. Be sure this overview matches with the projected staff and funding of the proposed budget section.

Each employee will receive performance reviews conducted by his or her supervisor. Performance evaluations will be conducted at least annually, prior to the end of the school year. All teaching staff will undergo frequent observations by the Principal throughout the school year. The frequency of performance evaluations may vary depending upon length of service, job position, past performance, changes in job duties, or recurring performance problems. Teachers participate in an interactive evaluation process. Details about the nature of this process are available through the Principal. A summary of employee reviews will be provided to the Board annually. State and federal privacy laws will be complied with.

3. Describe the core components of professional development plan and how these components will support effective implementation of the educational program. Describe the extent to which professional development will be conducted internally or externally and will be individualized or uniform.

A high performing school has clarity of mission and all employees are committed to that mission, and are provided the tools they need to be successful. There will be significant professional development prior to the opening of the school year and ongoing professional development during the school year. High performing schools have both a shared collaborative culture and competence in curriculum and instruction. The initial focus of the implementation of both Professional Learning Communities and Core Knowledge will be the foundation for collaborative culture and competence in curriculum and instruction. These foundations will be enhanced with additional professional development in the use of the Spalding Language Arts program and Saxon Math (all aligned with Common Core Standards). A comprehensive multi-year professional development plan will be developed prior to the opening of school that addresses the needs of all staff, as well as provides a framework for the personal development of individual teachers.

4. Provide a schedule and explanation of professional development that will take place prior to

school opening. Explain what will be covered during this induction period and how teachers will be prepared to deliver any unique or particularly challenging aspects of the curriculum and instructional methods.

3 day training

#### Audience:

K-8 instructional personnel and administrators new to Core Knowledge

# Length:

3 day training, 6 hours per day

#### Timing:

This workshop is best scheduled in spring or early summer to allow adequate curriculum planning time for teams that are beginning to implement the Core Knowledge Sequence, or portions thereof, the following year.

# Prerequisites:

Schools booking this workshop will have:

- \* participated in the Overview of Core Knowledge webinar;
- \* acquired Core Knowledge curriculum materials for all applicable teachers;
- \* scheduled an administrator and CK coordinator to attend this workshop.

The Three-Day Objectives:

Day One: A focus on the BIG PICTURE

By the end of day one, participants will be able to:

- \* explain the big picture of Core Knowledge planning tools and the progression from Plan, to Map, to Unit, to Lesson;
- \* explain the key features of the materials and how to use them for planning and preparation;
- \* explain the "4-C" characteristics of the Core Knowledge curriculum and why they are important for student learning.

Day Two: A focus on the Curriculum Plan (school-wide, year-long)

By the end of day two, participants will be able to:

- \* describe the components of the Curriculum Plan;
- \* determine the grade-level domains taught and justify the coherence of their sequence;
- \* develop a first draft of the Curriculum Plan;
- \* determine necessary next steps, including responsible parties and when the Plan will be modified or updated.

Day Three: A focus on the grade-level Domain MAPs

By the end of day three, participants will be able to:

- \* describe the components of a Domain Map;
- \* collaboratively develop 2-3 Domain Maps for the specific subject areas

#### they teach;

- \* develop school-wide strategies that assist with implementation challenges;
- \* articulate the expectations for the first follow-up visit.

#### Methods:

Participants will engage in processes that model active instruction they can use in the classroom. Tools, resources, scavenger hunts, and individual and team work will be employed. Participants will take a pre- and post-test to assess their understanding. Products created will be used for practical planning purposes at the school.

#### Required Materials:

- \* The Core Knowledge Sequence (version 2010, also available for download);
- \* Teacher Handbooks (available K-5);
- \* What Your \_\_ Grader Needs to Know books (available K-6);
- \* Math and special area teacher resources used to make connections (e.g. Art print list, Music CD selections, PP.E. and math curricular resources);
- \* Laptops or computer stations available for workshop use (one per grade level).
  - 5. Describe the expected number of days/hours for professional development throughout the school year, and explain how the school's calendar, daily schedule, and staffing structure accommodate this plan.

Total teacher contract days will be determined at a later date, but it is expected that they will include professional development days. We are also planning for additional stipend days prior to the school's opening that will focus both on building a strong school culture and preparing for the opening of a new school. There are several teacher workdays scheduled at various dates during the school year when students will be off from school during which professional development will be scheduled.

# **Enrollment and Marketing:**

Reaching the full capacity for enrollment will be critical to obtain the necessary financial resources to keep your school viable and operating efficiently. In addition, it is required by law that charter schools provide equal access to all students. Read the charter school state statute regarding admissions GS 115C.238.29F(g) (1-7) carefully.

#### Marketing Plan

Marketing to potential students and parents is vital to the survival of a charter school. Provide a plan indicating how the school will market to potential students and parents in order to reasonably reflects the racial/ethnic and demographic composition of the district in which the charter school will be located or of the special population the school seeks to serve: (G.S.115C-238.29F(g)(5)).

Building effective community partnerships will be a key component of a successful marketing strategy. Immediately upon approval of this application, New Hope Charter will reach out to local political, community, faith-based and corporate leaders to generate awareness of our innovative program. The day after this application is approved we will issue a press release announcing the approval to make community stakeholders aware of our intention to develop property in the area to build the school. In these difficult economic times, we are confident that our commitment to the economic development of the community will pave the way for positive

relationships and generate positive buzz in the community announcing our presence.

New Hope Charters founders will also conduct outreach activities to engage local education, church and other youth social service leaders to inform them of our program and build relationships that create a pipeline to the youth that they serve. We will seek to present our schools mission and vision to their constituents and display informational materials for the school.

In addition to community partnerships, we will use the following strategies and tactics to recruit students and achieve enrollment goals:

Site Billboard and Onsite Staffed Admissions Trailer: A billboard will be placed at the construction site. We believe that this is a unique-to-North Carolina capacity for recruitment that New Hope Charter will use to create awareness and interest in the community every day. The site billboard will include a school rendering, site plan, and the school's name, phone and website information needed for registration. The trailer on the building site will be staffed during normal business hours by school staff who conduct outreach activities and will include informational packets and enrollment forms.

Direct Mailings: We will purchase appropriate mailing lists to send informational postcards and promotional materials for the school. There will be at least three such mailings during the development year. Mailings will particularly target low income and diverse communities within Chatham, Durham and Wake Counties.

School Website: We will launch a school website that provides information about the schools mission and programs. It will also provide the option to complete an online enrollment application or print a hard copy, and it will give parents the opportunity to register for our mailing lists. The website will also track the progress of the building site and include pictures of the facility during development.

Press Releases & Advertising: On an ongoing basis, New Hope Charter will release statements to the press notifying them of our progress and programs and purchase advertising space in local publications to help in its efforts to create awareness in the community. This will include periodic releases to local newspapers that highlight building progress and enrollment successes. Advertising will be used only if deemed necessary.

Facility Tours: At least one month prior to school opening and subject to construction timelines, the facility will be open for tours for the general public. We believe that onsite tours will only increase enrollment numbers by providing families with the opportunity to see our innovative facility.

## **Parent and Community Involvement**

- 1. Describe how you will communicate with and engage parents and community members from the time that the school is approved through opening.
- 2. Describe how you will engage parents in the life of the public charter school. Explain the plan for building engaging partnerships between the family and school that strengthen support for

student learning.

Public Parent Meetings: The Founders and school leadership (upon hiring) will conduct multiple public parent meetings each month that will be communicated through community partnership platforms, press releases, on the school website and through its contact lists. These venues are effective platforms to build the enthusiasm for the school by describing the schools unique academic and fitness programming and opportunities for parental involvement, including participation on the Board.

Word of Mouth: Word of mouth will be essential to our ability to achievement enrollment targets, therefore we will work diligently to engage the parents and community leaders who have expressed interest and give them the tools and materials necessary to encourage other families to consider the school as an alternative for their child as well. This will be accomplished through a database system that tracks all contact information for people that have expressed an interest and/or enrolled their child at the school. We will send out at least bi-weekly email updates, through an effective system like Constant Contact, of the schools progress and include information and enrollment materials that they can use to inform others. We will also quickly identify parents and community members who are very enthusiastic about the school, and we will engage them in outreach and enrollment activities, including taking part in the public parent meetings.

Parents are encouraged to take an active role in the education of their children. New Hope Charter views its role as an education partner for parents. The school will have a parent volunteer organization which will assist school administrators with some of the challenges they face in providing human or financial resources for school operations. Parents will be involved in fund raising for field trips, clubs, and other activities that enrich students educational experience.

Board meetings will be open to the public in accordance with NC charter school statute, and time will be reserved at these meetings for public comment from parents or other members of the community in order to allow direct communication with the Board.

New Hope Charter will seek alliances with local businesses in the area in order to establish opportunities for internships or apprenticeship programs for our students.

## **Admissions Policy**

Provide the school's proposed policies and the procedures for admitting students to the proposed charter school, including:

- Tentative dates for the open enrollment application period; enrollment deadlines and procedures. \*Please be advised schools cannot accept applications until after final approval from the SBE.
- 2. Clear policies and procedures detailing the open enrollment lottery plan including policies regarding statutory permitted student enrollment preferences.
- 3. Clear policies and procedures for student waiting lists, withdrawals, re-enrollment, and transfers.
- 4. Explanation of the purpose of any pre-admission activities (if any) for students or parents.

5. Clear policies and procedures for student withdraws and transfers.

During open enrollment, all applications get equal consideration regardless of date submitted. An application received at the end of open enrollment receives equal treatment to one received on the first day of open enrollment. Open enrollment for the next school year will end on the last business day in February.

Lotteries will be held for any grade in which the number of applications exceeds the number of openings. Names are randomly selected and applicants are accepted based on the order in which they are selected. The lottery continues until all names are drawn. Applicants who are not accepted will be placed on a waiting list in the order their names were selected. In order to accommodate parents who have more than one child eligible for enrollment; siblings of currently enrolled students will be given preference over students who do not have accepted or enrolled siblings. Siblings will be offered the first available seat in their respective grade or placed on a waiting list with sibling preference. Sibling preference is defined as children who have at least one common parent/legal guardian AND are living in the same household at least 50% of the time.

The school will hold a public lottery during the second week in March, supervised by a neutral party, to select students for admission.

- \* The school will print out labels for all eligible students.
- \* A neutral party will pull labels in a public setting at a date, time and location advertised publicly and provided to applicants. Lottery results in each applicant receiving a number beginning at 1, 2, 3 and continuing until all applicant labels have been pulled and read aloud. Once the number of applications selected in the lottery equals the number of available spaces for a grade, a waiting list will be generated by continuing to assign numbers to the remaining applicants.
- \* All applicants will receive a letter indicating whether they were selected or whether they are on the waiting list. Students selected will receive notification via certified letter. Waiting list students will receive notification via regular mail.
- \* The selected students have 30 days to submit a signed letter of intent. Signed letters of intent received after the 30 days will not be accepted for enrollment.
- \* If space becomes available, New Hope Charter will attempt to contact waiting list students via phone, and if unable to do so, will mail certified letters offering the opportunity to enroll by a selected date. Waiting list students who fail to send a signed letter of intent by the selected date will not be accepted for enrollment.

A waiting list will be developed for applicants not admitted through the lottery. The lottery results in each applicant receiving a number beginning at 1, 2, 3 and continuing until all applicant labels have been pulled and read aloud. Once the number of applicants selected in the lottery equals the number of available spaces for a grade, a waiting list is generated by continuing to assign numbers to the remaining applicants. This waiting list will be the only official document identifying the names of eligible students who have applied to New Hope Charter. Parents will be notified by phone and given 24 hours to accept. This process will repeat until all slots have been filled. The waiting list will carry over through the entire school

year. Failure to submit a signed letter of intent by that date results in forfeiture of opportunity to enroll. If seats become available, the school will attempt to contact waiting list students via phone, and if unable to do so, will mail certified letters offering the opportunity to enroll by a selected dated. Those students on the waiting list who fail to submit a signed letter of intent by the selected date forfeit their opportunity to enroll.

There are no pre-admission activities for New Hope Charter. Once operational, the office staff will define clear procedures for withdrawals and transfers.

# PROJECTED ENROLLMENT 2015-16 through 2019-2020

IDENTIFY LEA FROM WHICH STUDENTS WILL PROBABLY COME

LEA #1 Chatham County Schools LEA #2 Wake County Schools LEA #3 Durham Public Schools In the following tables, please list for each year and grade level, the numbers of students that the school reasonably expects to enroll. In addition, please indicate any plans to increase the grade levels offered by the school over time and be sure these figures match those on the initial cover page.

	2015-2016			2016-2017				2017-2018			2018-2019		2019-2020		
	LEA 190	LEA 920	LEA 320												
Kinderg arten	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4
Grade 01	80	20	4	78	17	4	78	17	4	78	17	4	78	17	4
Grade 02	80	20	4	80	20	4	78	17	4	78	17	4	78	17	4
Grade 03	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4
Grade 04	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4
Grade 05	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4	80	20	4
Grade 06	80	20	5	80	20	5	80	20	5	80	20	5	80	20	5
Grade 07	0	0	0	80	20	5	80	20	5	80	20	5	80	20	5
Grade 08	0	0	0	0	0	0	80	20	5	80	20	5	80	20	5
	560	140	29	638	157	34	716	174	39	716	174	39	716	174	39
	729	)			829			929			929			929	

# **Transportation Plan:**

Describe in detail the transportation plan that will ensure that no child is denied access to the school due to lack of transportation. The details of this plan should align with the Mission, identified need for the charter school, targeted student population, and the budget proposal.

In accordance with state law, we do not allow transportation to be a barrier to any child attending the school. We expect that most parents will provide transportation for their children. However, we recognize this may not be a viable option for all parents. Therefore, the school will designate a Transportation Liaison to facilitate and coordinate transportation needs. Interested families may participate through sign-up forms that the dean coordinates by matching families with an appropriate carpool.

Additionally, the Board will work diligently so that the school is open and accessible to all students, including low-income students and students experiencing homelessness. The school will provide free transportation for students who are currently experiencing homelessness.

# **School Lunch Plan:**

Describe in detail the school lunch plan that will ensure that no child is lacking a daily meal. The details of this plan should align with the targeted student population and school budget proposal.

Prior to school opening, the Board and leadership shall ensure that lunch is available to every student no matter what income.

# Civil Liability and Insurance (GS 115C-238.29F(c)):

The Charter School shall obtain and maintain insurance at a minimum in the following amounts:

- 1. Errors and omissions: one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per claim;
- 2. General liability: one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence;
- 3. Boiler and machinery: the replacement cost of the building;
- 4. Real and personal property: the appraised value of the building and contents;
- 5. Fidelity bonds: no less than two hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000) to cover employee dishonesty;
- 6. Automobile liability: one million dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence; and
- 7. Workers' compensation: as specified by Chapter 97 of the General Statutes.

Area of proposed coverage	Proposed amou	nt of coverage	Cost (Quote)		
Comprehensive General Liability		\$1,000,000	\$6,846.00		
Officers and Directors/Errors and Omissions		\$1,000,000	\$.00		
Property Insurance		\$800,000	\$1,200.00		
Motor Vehicle Liability		\$1,000,000	\$181.00		
Bonding Minimum/Maximum Amount	\$250,000	\$250,000	\$332.00		
Other		\$1,000,000	\$16,984.00		

Total Cost \$25,543.00

\*The applicant must provide a quote from an insurance provider as part of this application (as Appendix O) to demonstrate the levels of insurance coverage and projected cost.

# **Health and Safety Requirements:**

All public charter schools are required to follow the regulations regarding health and safety as stated in § 115C238.29F (a).

We, the Board members at (Charter School Name) will develop a written safety plan and policies to be shared with staff, parents and students and be available upon inspection from the Department of Public Instruction and local Health Departments.

newhopecharter

12/02/2013

(Board Chair Signature)

(Date)

## **Facility:**

Note that the SBE may approve a charter school prior to the school's obtaining a facility; however, students may not attend school and no funds will be allocated until the school has obtained a valid Certificate of Occupancy for Educational use to the Office of Charter Schools.

What is your plan to obtain a building? Identify the steps that the board will take to acquire a facility and obtain the Educational Certificate of Occupancy. If a facility has been identified please fill out the Facility Form (Appendix N).

The Board intends to hire a developer specializing in charter development to locate land, ensure proper zoning, obtain financing and leaseback the land to New Hope Charter. Upon acceptance, New Hope will engage a developer to begin identifying sites. Facility Contingency Plan: Describe the method of finding a facility if the one the board has identified will not be ready by the time the public charter school will be opening. Include information regarding the immediate spatial needs of the school and identify any programs that will not be immediately offered because a permanent facility has yet to open.

N/A, as a site has not yet been identified and cannot be placed under contract until charter approval.

#### V. FINANCIAL PLAN

In the following sections present a detailed description of assumptions and revenue estimates, including but not limited to the basis for revenue projections, staffing levels, and costs. The narrative should specifically address the degree to which the school budget will rely on variable income.

# **Budget: Revenue Projections from each LEA 2015-16**

SHOW
CALCULATIONS
FOR FIGURING
STATE
AND LOCAL
DOLLARS
FOR THE
PROPOSED
CHARTER
SCHOOL

Refer to the
Resource Manual
Finance Section
for guidance on
estimated funding
amounts

**State Funds**: Charter schools receive an equivalent amount per student as the local education agency (LEA) receives per student receives from the State. Funding is based on the 1st month average daily membership.

- In year 1 Base state allotments are determined by the LEA in which the student resides
- In year 2 and beyond- Base State allotments are determined by the LEA in which the school is located.

**Local Funds:** Charter schools receive a per pupil share of the local current expense of the LEA in which the student resides. **Federal Funds:** Charter schools must qualify and apply for the individual federal grants based on their population of students.

#### REFER TO RESOURCE GUIDE FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND SOURCE DOCUMENTS

## LEA #1 190 - Chatham County Schools

Revenue	2013-2014 Per Pupil Funding	Projected LEA ADM	Approximate funding for 2015-2016
State Funds	\$4,764.90	560	\$2,668,344.00
Local Funds	\$2,900.00	560	\$1,624,000.00
Federal EC Funds	\$3,692.16	56	\$206,760.96
Totals			\$4,499,104.96

## LEA #2 920 - Wake County Schools

Revenue	2013-2014 Per Pupil Funding	Projected LEA ADM	Approximate funding for 2015-2016			
State Funds	\$4,539.11	140	\$635,475.40			
Local Funds	\$2,036.27	140	\$285,077.80			
Federal EC Funds	\$3,743.48	14	\$52,408.72			
Totals			\$972,961.92			

## LEA#3320 - Durham Public Schools

Revenue	2013-2014 Per Pupil Funding	Projected LEA ADM	Approximate funding for 2015-2016
State Funds	\$4,770.36	29	\$138,340.44
Local Funds	\$3,045.17	29	\$88,309.93
Federal EC Funds	\$3,743.48	3	\$11,230.44
Totals			\$237,880.81

# <u>Total Budget: Revenue Projections 2015-16 through 2019-2020</u>

INCOME: REVENUE PROJECTIONS	2015-2016	2016-2017	2017-2018	2018-2019	2019-2020
-State ADM Funds	\$3,442,160	\$3,950,102	\$4,426,592	\$4,426,592	\$4,426,592
-Local Per Pupil Funds	\$1,997,388	\$2,273,430	\$2,549,473	\$2,549,473	\$2,549,473
-Exceptional Children - Federal Funds	\$270,400	\$307,060	\$344,095	\$344,095	\$344,095
-Other Funds*	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
-Working Capital*	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Z - TOTAL REVENUE	\$5,709,948	\$6,530,592	\$7,320,160	\$7,320,160	\$7,320,160

<sup>\*</sup>If the applicant is depending on other funding sources or working capital to balance the operating budget, please provide documentation such as signed statements from donors, foundations, bank documents, etc., on the commitment of these funds. If these figures are loans, the repayment needs to be explained in the narrative and found within the budget projections.

Assurances are needed to confirm the commitment of these additional sources of revenue. Please include these as Appendix R.

# Personnel Budget: Expenditure Projections 2015-16 through 2019-2020

The personnel list below may be amended to meet the staffing of individual charter schools: This list should align with the projected staff located in the Operations Plan (Appendix M).

BUDGET EXPENDITURE PROJECTIONS Personnel	2015-2016			2016-2017		2017-2018			2018-2019			2019-2020			
	Num Staff	Avg Salary	Total salary	FTE	Avg Salary	Total salary	FTE	Avg Salary	Total salary	FTE	Avg Salary	Total salary	FTE	Avg Salary	Total salary
Administrative & Support Personnel:															
Lead Administrator	1	\$85,000	\$85,000	1	\$90,000	\$90,000	1	\$100,000	\$100,000	1	\$100,000	\$100,000	1	\$100,000	\$100,000
Assistant Administrator	1	\$60,000	\$60,000	1	\$65,000	\$65,000	2	\$70,000	\$140,000	2	\$70,000	\$140,000	2	\$70,000	\$140,000
Business Manager	1	\$42,000	\$42,000	1	\$45,000	\$45,000	1	\$45,000	\$45,000	1	\$45,000	\$45,000	1	\$45,000	\$45,000
Clerical	2	\$33,000	\$66,000	2	\$33,000	\$66,000	2	\$33,000	\$66,000	2	\$33,000	\$66,000	2	\$33,000	\$66,000
Building Maintenance	1	\$40,000	\$40,000	1	\$40,000	\$40,000	1	\$40,000	\$40,000	1	\$40,000	\$40,000	1	\$40,000	\$40,000
Information Technology	1	\$55,000	\$55,000	1	\$55,000	\$55,000	1	\$55,000	\$55,000	1	\$55,000	\$55,000	1	\$55,000	\$55,000
Registrar	1	\$42,000	\$42,000	1	\$42,000	\$42,000	1	\$42,000	\$42,000	1	\$42,000	\$42,000	1	\$42,000	\$42,000
Ec Coordinator	1	\$50,000	\$50,000	1	\$50,000	\$50,000	1	\$50,000	\$50,000	1	\$50,000	\$50,000	1	\$50,000	\$50,000
A - Total Admin and Support:	9	\$407,000	\$440,000	9	\$420,000	\$453,000	10	\$435,000	\$538,000	10	\$435,000	\$538,000	10	\$435,000	\$538,000
Instructional Personnel:															
Core Content Teacher(s)	32	\$45,000	\$1,440,000	37	\$45,000	\$1,665,000	42	\$47,000	\$1,974,000	42	\$47,000	\$1,974,000	42	\$47,000	\$1,974,000
Teacher Assistants	17	\$25,000	\$425,000	17	\$25,000	\$425,000	17	\$25,000	\$425,000	17	\$25,000	\$425,000	17	\$25,000	\$425,000
Electives/Specialty Teacher(s)	4	\$45,000	\$180,000	5	\$45,000	\$225,000	6	\$47,000	\$282,000	6	\$47,000	\$282,000	6	\$47,000	\$282,000
Exceptional Children Teacher(s)	2	\$45,000	\$90,000	3	\$45,000	\$135,000	3	\$47,000	\$141,000	3	\$47,000	\$141,000	3	\$47,000	\$141,000
B - Total Instructional Personnel:	55	\$160,000	\$2,135,000	62	\$160,000	\$2,450,000	68	\$166,000	\$2,822,000	68	\$166,000	\$2,822,000	68	\$166,000	\$2,822,000
A+B = C - Total Admin, Support and Instructional	64	\$567,000	\$2,575,000	71	\$580,000	\$2,903,000	78	\$601,000	\$3,360,000	78	\$601,000	\$3,360,000	78	\$601,000	\$3,360,000

Personnel:															
Administrative & Support Benefits															
Health Insurance	9	\$3,000	\$27,000	9	\$3,000	\$27,000	10	\$3,000	\$30,000	10	\$3,000	\$30,000	10	\$3,000	\$30,000
Retirement PlanOther	9	\$302	\$2,718	9	\$307	\$2,763	10	\$323	\$3,230	10	\$323	\$3,230	10	\$323	\$3,230
Medicare	9	\$583	\$5,247	9	\$593	\$5,337	10	\$625	\$6,250	10	\$625	\$6,250	10	\$625	\$6,250
Social Security	9	\$2,495	\$22,455	9	\$2,495	\$22,455	10	\$2,495	\$24,950	10	\$2,495	\$24,950	10	\$2,495	\$24,950
D - Total Admin and Support Benefits:	36	\$6,380	\$57,420	36	\$6,395	\$57,555	40	\$6,443	\$64,430	40	\$6,443	\$64,430	40	\$6,443	\$64,430
Instructional Personnel Benefits:															
Health Insurance	55	\$3,000	\$165,000	62	\$3,000	\$186,000	68	\$3,000	\$204,000	68	\$3,000	\$204,000	68	\$3,000	\$204,000
Retirement PlanOther	55	\$302	\$16,610	62	\$307	\$19,034	68	\$323	\$21,964	68	\$323	\$21,964	68	\$323	\$21,964
Medicare	55	\$583	\$32,065	62	\$593	\$36,766	68	\$625	\$42,500	68	\$625	\$42,500	68	\$625	\$42,500
Social Security	55	\$2,495	\$137,225	62	\$2,535	\$157,170	68	\$2,671	\$181,628	68	\$2,671	\$181,628	68	\$2,671	\$181,628
E - Total Instructional Personnel Benefits:	220	\$6,380	\$350,900	248	\$6,435	\$398,970	272	\$6,619	\$450,092	272	\$6,619	\$450,092	272	\$6,619	\$450,092
D+E = F - Total Personnel Benefits	256	\$12,760	\$408,320	284	\$12,830	\$456,525	312	\$13,062	\$514,522	312	\$13,062	\$514,522	312	\$13,062	\$514,522
A+D = G - Total Admin and Support Personnel (Salary & Benefits)	45	\$2,531,030	\$497,420	45	\$2,831,996	\$510,555	50	\$3,029,629	\$602,430	50	\$3,029,629	\$602,430	50	\$3,029,629	\$602,430
B+E = H - Total Instructional Personnel (Salary & Benefits)	275	\$766,956	\$2,485,900	310	\$874,904	\$2,848,970	340	\$975,576	\$3,272,092	340	\$975,576	\$3,272,092	340	\$975,576	\$3,272,092
G+H = J - TOTAL PERSONNEL	320	\$3,297,986	\$2,983,320	355	\$3,706,900	\$3,359,525	390	\$4,005,205	\$3,874,522	390	\$4,005,205	\$3,874,522	390	\$4,005,205	\$3,874,522

Operations Budget: Expenditure Projections 2015-16 through 2019-2020

	TIONS EXPENDITURE DECTIONS	2015-2016	2016-2017	2017-2018	2018-2019	2019-2020
	Administrative & Support:					
Books And Supplies	Admin. Supplies	\$3,850	\$3,850	\$3,850	\$3,850	\$3,850
Other	Enrollment Contingency	\$560,211	\$637,057	\$713,904	\$713,904	\$713,904
	Expense Contingency	\$112,042	\$254,823	\$285,561	\$285,561	\$285,561
	Extra-Curricular Athletics	\$26,700	\$26,700	\$26,700	\$26,700	\$26,700
	Facility Repairs & Maintenance	\$54,074	\$74,074	\$99,074	\$99,074	\$99,074
	Insurances	\$25,543	\$25,543	\$25,543	\$25,543	\$25,543
	Misc.	\$15,104	\$15,104	\$15,104	\$15,104	\$15,104
Facilities	Facility Lease	\$1,150,000	\$1,235,000	\$1,285,000	\$1,285,000	\$1,285,000
Classroom Technology	Purchase/Rent/Repair	\$101,676	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$65,000	\$65,000
Utilities	Utilities	\$68,450	\$68,450	\$68,450	\$68,450	\$68,450
	K - TOTAL Administrative & Support Operations	\$2,117,650	\$2,405,601	\$2,588,186	\$2,588,186	\$2,588,186
	Instructional:					
Books And Supplies	Instructional Materials	\$119,854	\$171,954	\$171,954	\$171,954	\$171,954
Office:	Contracted Services	\$413,147	\$463,940	\$553,428	\$553,428	\$553,428
	Professional Development & Stipends	\$49,800	\$54,800	\$59,800	\$59,800	\$59,800
	Special Education	\$17,775	\$17,775	\$17,775	\$17,775	\$17,775
	L - TOTAL Instructional Operations	\$600,576	\$708,469	\$802,957	\$802,957	\$802,957
	K+L = M - TOTAL OPERATIONS	\$2,718,226	\$3,114,070	\$3,391,143	\$3,391,143	\$3,391,143

**Overall Budget:** 

BUDGET OPERATIONS EXPENDITURE PROJECTIONS	2015-2016	2016-2017	2017-2018	2018-2019	2019-2020
J - TOTAL PERSONNEL	\$2,983,320	\$3,359,525	\$3,874,522	\$3,874,522	\$3,874,522
M - TOTAL OPERATIONS	\$2,718,226	\$3,114,070	\$3,391,143	\$3,391,143	\$3,391,143
J+ M =N TOTAL EXPENDITURES	\$5,701,546	\$6,473,595	\$7,265,665	\$7,265,665	\$7,265,665
Z - TOTAL REVENUE	\$5,709,948	\$6,530,592	\$7,320,160	\$7,320,160	\$7,320,160
Z - N = SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)	\$8,402	\$56,997	\$54,495	\$54,495	\$54,495

# **Budget Narrative:** (No more than one and a half pages)

Please include additional information that showcases all assumptions for your budgetary calculations.

1. How was the student enrollment number projected?

Provide an explanation as to why you believe there is a demand for the school that will meet this enrollment projection.

Provide the break-even point of student enrollment.

The enrollment targets projected in this application were derived through an analysis of the existing population in the geographic area in which we intend to locate the school, the anticipated rate of growth, and distances within which the school is likely to draw students. This information was balanced against the estimated costs of the school operation at levels where economies of scale can be achieved to derive enrollment targets that are achievable in terms of both student demand and financial sustainability.

The board believes that the academic program featuring the Core Knowledge Sequence is not only academically effective, but popular in our state, particularly within charter schools. The planned Athlos Academy character development program is a systematic approach to inculcating students with traditional moral character, healthy living habits and strong performance characteristics such as leadership, self-discipline, and persistence that has been very well received in meetings with prospective parents in our area and across the state. We therefore are confident that our school will enjoy high demand from students and parents. For further information, please see appendix A.

The break-even enrollment is primarily a function of fixed operating costs, the largest one of which is facilities. We anticipate a break-even level at an enrolment of 600 students, assuming the full scope of facilities envisioned by the board for our school are developed.

Discuss the school's contingency plan to meet financial needs if anticipated revenues are not received or are lower than estimated.

The school operating budget contains contingencies for overruns of operating expenses, capital reserves, and revenue shortfalls due to lower than anticipated enrollment. Depending on the budget year, these contingencies range from twelve to fourteen percent of revenues, allowing for a contingency reserve of \$672,000 to \$1,000,000 in any given operating year.

The board also plans to manage cash flow carefully so that the school does not overspend based upon a high estimation of enrollment until that level of enrollment is known more certainly in the first months ADM. The school

business manager will work with school vendors to enable flexible payment plans that take into account the timing of cash flows and build as much flexibility into the financial operation of the school as possible.

Does the budget rely on sources of funds other than state, county, and federal (e.g. loans, donations etc.? If so, please provide the source and amount. Be sure that the appropriate assurances documentation is provided in the appendices

The board has received an initial commitment for provision of a facility before the school opens by leaders at the Charter School Fund contingent upon the proposed charter being approved. The board has received no commitment of other funds through grants or loans from other corporations of foundations, and the operating budget and plans for school opening are not dependent on such grants or loans.

Provide the student to teacher ratio that the budget is built on. The ratio of students to Core Teachers is 22.75.

2. Does the school intend to contract for services such as student accounting and financial services, exceptional children instructional support, custodial etc. Describe the criteria and procedures for the selection of contractors and large purchases.

The board intends to engage service providers for accounting, payroll and annual audits. The schools principal and business manager will work closely with these providers for effective financial management on a day to day basis. Criteria for selection of contractors will include relevant experience with charter school finance and reporting, cooperative "team oriented" working style, and expertise to advise the board in how best to adjust to financial opportunities and threats that may arise from time to time. The board will approve by vote any contracts entered into, taking care to see that the state of NC is explicitly exculpated from any obligations the board may undertake.

3. Explain how the budget aligns with the school's mission, curricular offerings, transportation plans, and facility needs.

The mission of the school includes maximizing the academic and character development of its students. The budget has two primary spending priorities that are critical to meeting the schools mission: personnel and facilities. The schools mission cannot be met without both of these components available in a level of sufficient quality and quantity.

The operating budget takes into consideration the fact that our character development program, being delivered through the medium of a robust physical education curriculum as it is, necessitates a school facility that is larger and has more amenities than is typically the case for elementary and middle schools. In developing our budgets, much care has been taken to obtain accurate cost estimates and rental rates for the type of facility the board plans to have built. The enrollment target is geared to creating a school that can operate on the economies of scale to efficiently carry the costs of such facilities at or below 25% of its revenue stream in the short term. As the school achieves its maximum enrollment in approximately three years, the board anticipates facilities costs will drop to 20% or less of revenues.

School staffing has also been considered. Staffing levels are sufficient to carry out our academic program effectively and efficiently. Our school is

planned for an enrollment level that allows us to keep personnel costs at a level of 55% of revenues or less over time.

The school has contingency planning in the budget for both expense overruns and enrollment (revenue) shortfalls. Unused contingency funds and operating surpluses will be kept in a reserve to be built up year by year.

4. What percentage of expenditures will be the school's goal for a general fund balance? Describe how the school will develop the fund balance.

The board has budgeted rather aggressively for various contingencies, which, if all the contingencies are realized, will yield a slight operating surplus in the first operating year of \$8,000 or so. However, the board anticipates that in a typical year, some contingencies will not be realized, in which case the surplus is likely to grow significantly. The board's goal for increasing the fund balance of the school each year is 5% of revenues or more. However, in order to be prepared for the significant detrimental effects of enrollment loss or unanticipated cost overruns, the board plans to maintain its aggressive contingency budgeting.

5. Provide a description of proposed financing structure. Include financing of facilities, other asset financing and leases.

The board anticipates financing school furnishings and other capital intensive equipment through leases during the first few years of operation. As the school has a chance to build up cash reserves through operating surpluses, it will seek to minimize financing costs through the use of cash purchases. The procurement of facilities will be sought through a lease with a developer. As mentioned above, the board has received a preliminary commitment of financing from a facilities developer. Such financing is planned for an initial structure as a long-term commercial lease with a purchase option for the school. As the school is able to prove itself in the financial markets over time, the board intends to seek lower cost mortgage or bond financing by which to buy the facility and limit the schools cost of occupancy.

7. Will the school have assets from other sources (e.g. building, furniture, chairs, computers, etc.)? If yes, please provide a list. Note which are secured and which are anticipated, and include evidence of commitment for any assets on which the school's core operation depends

The Board will seek grants and other sources of income to help with the acquisition of facilities and furnishings, and program development. However, it does not have such sources of income secured at the time of this application. The board plans not to depend on any income outside of government per-pupil funding, choosing instead to utilize grants and other income sources as means for advancing school programs on a faster timeline than would otherwise be possible.

### **Financial Compliance:** (No more than a half of a page)

How will the school ensure adequate internal controls, including segregation of duties, safeguarding of assets, accurate and adequate recording keeping?

As stated earlier in this application, the board intends to engage service providers for accounting, payroll and annual audits. While the schools principal and business manager will work closely with these providers for effective financial management on a day to day basis, these professionals will report to the board to ensure financial oversight at the board level.

In addition, our school will maintain a separation of persons requesting funds for some expenditure from the person actually issuing the check. Also, we will maintain a separation of the person who reconciles the monthly bank statements from the person issuing checks. Of course, the board will, in accordance with state statute, be engaging an auditing firm on the approved list of auditors maintained by the Local Government Commission.

Provide any known or possible related party transactions (relationship, description of transaction and estimated dollars involved)

There are no known related party transactions anticipated by the Board at the time of this application. However, the Board will be following the procedures outlined in its Bylaws and described earlier in this application to properly deal with actual or perceived conflicts of interest that may arise in the future.

Provide the name and contact information of the independent audit firm who will conduct the annual financial statement audit. If a firm has yet to be identified please list the firms the board has investigated.

The board intends to contract with Thomas, Judy and Tucker, P.A., Certified Public Accountants to conduct the financial audit of the school. TJT has conducted numerous annual audits of NC charter schools.

Thomas, Judy and Tucker, P.A. 4700 Falls of Neuse Road Suite 400 Raleigh, NC 27609

Telephone: 919-571-7055

Fax: 919-516-0277

#### **VI.** AGREEMENT PAGE

# **Application Fee:**

Pursuant to § 115C-238.29B(e) the charter school applicant must submit a \$500 application fee to the Office of Charter Schools. The applicant must submit their application fee by the December 6, 2013 5:00 pm EST deadline. Payments will be accepted in the form of a check only. Cash or credit cards are not accepted.

\*Application Note: The applicant must mail the check along with a copy of the proposed charter LOI to be received before or on the due date of December 6, 2013 5:00 pm EST. Failure to submit payment by the stipulated timeline to the Office of Charter Schools will deem the application incomplete.

Payments should be made payable to North Carolina Department of Public Instruction

North Carolina Department of Public Instruction Office Of Charter Schools 6303 Mail Service Center Raleigh, NC 27699-6303

I understand the requirements pursuant to G.S. 115C-238.29B(e). newhopecharter Date: 12/06/2013

# **Applicant Signature:**

The foregoing application is submitted on behalf of New Hope Charter School (name of non-profit corporation or individuals submitting application). The undersigned has read the application and hereby declares that the information contained in it is true and accurate to the best of his/her information and belief. The undersigned further represents that the applicant has read the Charter School Law and agrees to be governed by it, other applicable laws, and SBE regulations.

Print/Type Name: newhopecharter		
Board Position: Board Member		
Signature:	Date:	12/06/2013
	Sworn to and subscribed beforeday of	
	Notary Public	Official Seal
	My commission expires:	, 20

New Hope Charter School